
City Council Agenda

AUGUST 11, 2015
6:00 p.m.
City of Turlock Yosemite Room
156 S. Broadway, Turlock, California

Mayor
Gary Soiseth

City Manager
Council Members Roy W. Wasden

William DeHart, Jr. Steven Nascimento City Clerk
Matthew Jacob Amy Bublak Kellie E. Weaver

Vice Mayor City Attorney
Phaedra A. Norton

1. A. CALL TO ORDER

B. SALUTE TO THE FLAG

2. PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, APPOINTMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS &
PRESENTATIONS:

A. Presentation:  Business Incentive Program and Check Presentation to Greg Raynes,
Oak Barrel Ice & Creamery

3. A. SPECIAL BRIEFINGS: None

B. STAFF UPDATES

1.  Capital Projects and Building Activity (Pitcock)
2.  Brandon Koch Skate Park Temporary Closure and Relocation Plan (Van Guilder)

SPEAKER CARDS: To accommodate those wishing to address the Council and allow for staff follow-up, speaker cards are available
for any agendized topic or any other topic delivered under Public Comment.  Please fill out and provide the Comment Card to the City
Clerk or Police Officer.

NOTICE REGARDING NON-ENGLISH SPEAKERS: The Turlock City Council meetings are conducted in English and translation to
other languages is not provided.  Please make arrangements for an interpreter if necessary.

EQUAL ACCESS POLICY: If you have a disability which affects your access to public facilities or services, please contact the City
Clerk’s Office at (209) 668-5540.  The City is committed to taking all reasonable measures to provide access to its facilities and
services.  Please allow sufficient time for the City to process and respond to your request.

NOTICE: Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54954.3, any member of the public may directly address the City Council
on any item appearing on the agenda, including Consent Calendar and Public Hearing items, before or during the City Council’s
consideration of the item.

AGENDA PACKETS: Prior to the City Council meeting, a complete Agenda Packet is available for review on the City’s website at
www.cityofturlock.org and in the City Clerk’s Office at 156 S. Broadway, Suite 230, Turlock, during normal business hours.  Materials
related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Council after distribution of the Agenda Packet are also available for public
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office.  Such documents may be available on the City’s website subject to staff’s ability to post the
documents before the meeting.



Council Agenda
08/11/15

Page 2

C. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
This is the time set aside for members of the public to directly address the City Council on any item of interest to
the public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council and to address the Council on any item
on tonight’s agenda, including Consent Calendar items. You will be allowed five (5) minutes for your comments.
If you wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda, you may be asked to defer your remarks until the Council
addresses the matter.
No action or discussion may be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, except that
Council may refer the matter to staff or request it be placed on a future agenda.

4. A. MOTION WAIVING READING OF ALL ORDINANCES ON THE AGENDA, EXCEPT BY
TITLE

B. DECLARATION OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND DISQUALIFICATIONS

C. DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

1. Public Hearing Item 7B is a quasi-judicial proceeding.  Council should disclose the
following information if applicable

a. State for the public record the nature of the communication; and
b. With whom the ex parte communication was made; and
c. A brief statement as to the substance of the communication.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR
Information concerning the consent items listed hereinbelow has been forwarded to each Councilmember prior to this
meeting for study.  Unless the Mayor, a Councilmember or member of the audience has questions concerning the
Consent Calendar, the items are approved at one time by the Council.  The action taken by the Council in approving
the consent items is set forth in the explanation of the individual items.

A. Resolution:  Accepting Demands of 7/16/15 in the amount of $1,013,020.77
B. Motion:  Accepting Minutes of Regular Meeting of July 28, 2015
C. Motion:  Approving Amendment No. 3 to the agreement with Pires, Lipomi + Navarro

Architects and increasing the total compensation in the amount of $10,190 (Fund 426-
40-415.51260) for City Project No. 12-60B, "Turlock Regional Transit Center Phase 2
Design and Master Plan"

D. 1. Motion: Making the determination that City Project No. 15-56, "Crane Avenue Sewer
Line Replacement," is exempt from the provisions of Section 14 CCR §15301, of the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), “Existing Facilities”
2. Motion: Awarding bid and approving an agreement in the amount of $49,564.23
(Fund 410) with Taylor Backhoe Service, Inc., Merced, California, for City Project No.
15-56, "Crane Avenue Sewer Line Replacement"

E. Motion: Approving a Cooperative Agreement between Caltrans and the City of Turlock
for the construction of Interchange Improvements at Fulkerth Road and Highway 99

F. Motion:  Approving the five (5) year agreement with Denair Unified School District of
Stanislaus County and the City of Turlock to authorize the use of Denair facilities for
recreational purposes until July 28, 2020

G. Motion:  Approving a Memorandum of Understanding among Stanislaus County Office of
Education, the City of Turlock and the Turlock Unified School District and authorizing the
acceptance of an allocation of funds and execution of a grant agreement to implement
the ASES Program (Supporting After School for Everyone)



Council Agenda
08/11/15

Page 3

H. Resolution: Authorizing the Mayor, City Manager or the City Attorney to execute
agreements between the City of Turlock, local businesses, other governmental agencies
and local non-profits for the purpose of conducting training or programs on City owned
property

I. Motion: Approving a service agreement with St. Francis Electric, LLC, for Traffic Signal
Preventative Maintenance and Repair Services, for a period of thirty-six (36) months, in
an amount not to exceed $150,000 from Fund 216-40-421.43060_003 “Contract Service
Signalization”

J. Motion: Approving the service agreement with Hilmar Ready Mix of Hilmar for Porta-Mix
concrete for Municipal Services Utilities Division for a period of twelve (12) months, in an
amount not to exceed $12,000

K. Motion:  Authorizing the Mayor, City Manager or designee to execute the service
maintenance agreement with Johnson Controls, Inc., to provide preventive maintenance
for the City of Turlock Public Safety Facility environmental controls systems, for a period
of three (3) years, beginning August 11, 2015, to be billed annually, in an amount not to
exceed $7,495 in year one; $7,720 in year two; and $7,952 in year three

L. Resolution: Re-appropriating unspent funds of $13,800 from Fiscal Year 2014-15 to
account number 512-10-152.43016 “CVB Audit” from Fund 512 “Casualty Insurance”
reserve balance for the completion of a compliance audit of the Turlock Convention and
Visitors Bureau “Tourism Fund” for the period of January 1, 2009 through May 3, 2015

M. Resolution: Rescinding Resolution No. 2011-157 and adopting the amended City of
Turlock Anti-Drug and Alcohol Misuse Prevention Program Policy and Procedures

N. Resolution:  Approving modifications to job descriptions for the position(s) of Crime &
Community Information Analyst, Housing Rehabilitation Specialist I/II, Customer
Services Supervisor, Utilities Maintenance Worker I/II, Utilities Maintenance Worker
Senior, Utilities Supervisor, and Parks, Recreation, and Public Facilities Coordinator
effective August 11, 2015

O. Resolution:  Providing copyright permission to John Carlyle Parker, authorizing the
reprinting of certain material contained in Streams in a Thirsty Land, for use in his
autobiography entitled, The Saga of a Librarian

P. Motion: Rejecting Claim for Damages filed by Ann B. Atkinson
Q. 1. Motion:  Authorizing the Mayor or City Manager to enter into a professional services

agreement with a recruitment firm to conduct an executive recruitment for the position of
Fire Chief, in an amount not to exceed $25,000 Authorizing the Mayor or City Manager
to enter into a professional services agreement with a recruitment firm to conduct an
executive recruitment for the position of Fire Chief, in an amount not to exceed $25,000
2. Resolution:  Appropriating $25,000 from Fund 110 “General Fund” reserve balance to
110-30-300.47090 “Testing & Recruitment” for the retention of a recruitment firm to
conduct an executive recruitment for the position of Fire Chief

6. FINAL READINGS

A. Recommended Action:
Ordinance:  Adding Turlock Municipal Code Title 8, Chapter 7, regarding expedited
permitting procedures for small residential rooftop solar systems as introduced at the
July 28, 2015 meeting



Council Agenda
08/11/15

Page 4

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS
Challenges in court to any of the items listed below,  may be limited to only those issues raised at the public hearing
described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Turlock City Council at, or prior to, the public
hearing.

A. Request to accept the report from the Planning Commission on potential changes to the
Zoning Regulations referred by the City Council on April 14, 2015. (Whitmore)

Recommended Action:
Motion: Accepting the report from the Planning Commission on potential changes to the
Zoning Regulations referred by the City Council on April 14, 2015

B. Request for approval establishing a lien for payment for repair cost of certain
maintenance of curbs, gutters, sidewalks, curb cuts, and driveway approaches that are
out of repair.  (Van Guilder)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Assessing properties for sidewalk repair costs and establishing a lien for
payment

C. Request to make the determination that the amount of compensation, in the amount of
$240,000, offered by the Turlock Irrigation District to acquire the existing skate park,
located at 250 Starr Avenue, Turlock, California, complies with the Park Preservation
Act, Public Resource Code Section 5405 and accepts bids received for City Project No.
15-28, “Skate Park Relocation”. (Pitcock)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Making the determination that the amount of compensation, in the amount
of $240,000, offered by the Turlock Irrigation District to acquire the existing skate park,
located at 250 Starr Avenue, Turlock, California, complies with the Park Preservation
Act, Public Resource Code Section 5405

Motion: Accepting bids received for City Project No. 15-28, “Skate Park Relocation”

8. SCHEDULED MATTERS

A. Request to approve a new job description for the position of Part-Time Event Assistant,
effective July 1, 2015. (Van Guilder)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Approving a new job description for the position of Part Time Event
Assistant, effective July 1, 2015

B. Request to authorize the regulation of the War Memorial Cannon. (Van Guilder)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Authorizing the regulation of the War Memorial Cannon



Council Agenda
08/11/15

Page 5

C. Request to approve a Memorandum of Understanding between the Turlock Police
Department and the Stanislaus County Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
Agency (BHRS) for the creation of a Homeless Engagement Multi-Disciplinary Team
(HEMDT). (Jackson)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Approving a Memorandum of Understanding between the Turlock Police
Department and the Stanislaus County Behavioral Health and Recovery Services
Agency (BHRS) for the creation of a Homeless Engagement Multi-Disciplinary Team
(HEMDT)

D. Request to consider the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) for the North Valley
Regional Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP) in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); make certain findings concerning environmental
impacts and mitigation measures; adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program,
in connection with approval of the NVRRWP contemplated by the Final Environmental
Impact Report and approve the following NVRRWP components: (1) design and
construction of the NVRRWP transmission facilities, including all necessary transmission
pipelines to transmit and deliver recycled water from the terminus of the Harding Drain
Bypass Pipeline to the DMC; (2) the addition of a new authorized point of discharge of
the City’s recycled water to the DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to
add 43,259 acres in the DPWD and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the
authorized place of use for the City’s recycled water; (4) the addition of supplemental
CVPIA refuge water supplies to the authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled
water; and (5) a Joint Powers Agreement for the North Valley Regional Recycled Water
Program, as specified in the resolution considering the Final EIR for the NVRRWP.
(Cooke)

Recommended Action:
Resolution: Considering the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) for the North
Valley Regional Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP) in accordance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), and making certain findings concerning
environmental impacts and mitigation measures, and adopting a Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program, in connection with approval of the NVRRWP contemplated by
the Final Environmental Impact Report, and approving specified NVRRWP components

Motion: Approving the following NVRRWP components: (1) design and construction of
the NVRRWP transmission facilities, including all necessary transmission pipelines to
transmit and deliver recycled water from the terminus of the Harding Drain Bypass
Pipeline to the DMC; (2) the addition of a new authorized point of discharge of the City’s
recycled water to the DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to add 43,259
acres in the DPWD and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the authorized place of
use for the City’s recycled water; (4) the addition of supplemental CVPIA refuge water
supplies to the authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled water; and (5) a Joint
Powers Agreement for the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program, as specified
in the resolution considering the Final EIR for the NVRRWP



Council Agenda
08/11/15

Page 6

E. Request to approve a Gift Agreement for Turlock Mayor’s Office Public Policy Award
between the City of Turlock; California State University, Stanislaus; and the California
State University, Stanislaus Foundation, and authorize the Mayor to execute all related
documents and agreements.  (Mayor Soiseth)

Recommended Action:
Motion: Approving a Gift Agreement for Turlock Mayor’s Office Public Policy Award
between the City of Turlock; California State University, Stanislaus; and the California
State University, Stanislaus Foundation, and authorizing the Mayor to execute all related
documents and agreements

9. COUNCIL ITEMS FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION

10. COUNCIL COMMENTS
Councilmembers may provide a brief report on notable topics of interest.  The Brown Act does not allow discussion or
action by the legislative body.

11. CLOSED SESSION: None

12. ADJOURNMENT

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Agenda Synopsis
8/11/15
Page 2

The NVRRWP is subject to federal, as well as City, County of Stanislaus, and
state environmental review requirements. An Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) was prepared for the Project
for purposes of compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The City of Modesto is the
lead agency under CEQA and US Bureau of Reclamation is the lead agency
under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).  In addition, the City of
Turlock and DPWD are partnering with the City of Modesto in developing the
NVRRWP, and are thus responsible agencies under CEQA.  Cooperating
agencies under NEPA include the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, which has
Endangered Species Act (ESA) jurisdiction over terrestrial wildlife and freshwater
fish and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Marine
Fisheries Service, which has ESA jurisdiction over anadromous fish. The Project
may require environmental approvals from several local, state and Federal
agencies, including Stanislaus County, the California Department of Fish and
Wildlife, the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) and Regional
Water Quality Control Board, and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

The EIR/EIS analyzed three potential Project alternatives: (1) the Combined
Alignment Alternative; (2) the Separate Alignment Alternative; and (3) the PID
Conveyance Alternative.  The NVRRWP components that are recommended for
approval now will convey recycled water from the City of Turlock’s Harding Drain
Bypass Pipeline to the City of Modesto’s Jennings Wastewater Treatment Plan
(Jennings Plan) and from there under the San Joaquin River to the DMC.  The
proposed Project is located partially within the City of Modesto’s Jennings
Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is within the Modesto city limits, and partially
in unincorporated Stanislaus County.  The DMC is under the jurisdiction of
Reclamation.

The environmental review of the NVRRWP commenced with the release of the
Notice of Preparation on April 22, 2014 to public agencies and interested parties
for consultation on the scope of the EIR/EIS.  The City of Modesto and
Reclamation prepared a Draft EIR/EIS in January, 2015, which reflected the
independent judgment of the City and Reclamation as to the potential
environmental effects of the Project.  The Draft EIR/EIS was circulated for a 60-
day public review period between January 8, 2015 and March 11, 2015.  The City
of Modesto and Reclamation held a joint public meeting regarding the Draft
EIR/EIS for the NVRRWP on February 11, 2015.

Public and agency comments were received and staff has prepared written
responses to all public comments received during the public comment period in a
Final EIR. The Final EIR also contains clarifications and minor revisions to
information presented in the Draft EIR/EIS. No new information was received
during the comment period or included in the Final EIR that would require
recirculation of the Draft EIR under CEQA Guidelines section 15088.5.  The Draft



Agenda Synopsis
8/11/15
Page 3

EIR/EIS text has been revised to include these minor revisions and the revised
text is included in the Final EIR.  The Draft EIR/EIS and Final EIR are collectively
referred to herein as the “Final EIR”.

The Final EIR identified potentially significant impacts that will be reduced to a
less than significant level with specified mitigation measures.  Approval of the
Project will therefore require adoption of environmental findings and a Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program under CEQA.  The Final EIR did not identify
significant and unavoidable environmental impacts of the Project; approval of the
Project will therefore not require the adoption of a Statement of Overriding
Considerations.

Staff is recommending that City Council approve the following NVRRWP
components: (1) design and construction of the NVRRWP transmission facilities,
including all necessary transmission pipelines to transmit and deliver recycled
water from the terminus of the Harding Drain Bypass Pipeline to the DMC; (2) the
addition of a new authorized point of discharge of the City’s recycled water to the
DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to add 43,259 acres in the
DPWD and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the authorized place of use
for the City’s recycled water; (4) the addition of supplemental CVPIA refuge water
supplies to the authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled water; and (5)
approval of a Joint Powers Agreement for the North Valley Regional Recycled
Water Program.

The City of Modesto and Del Puerto Water District have separately considered
approvals of their components of the NVRRWP.

To view the Final Environmental Impact Report, go to the following URL:
http://www.nvr-recycledwater.org/documents.asp

3. BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION:

A. Provides for the beneficial use of recycled water supplies for agricultural
irrigation.

B. Removes the City’s wastewater discharge from the San Joaquin River.

C. Allows the City to secure its right to use recycled water for beneficial use for
the benefit of the City and all of its regional partners, including TID.

D. Provides a potential source of revenue to the Water Quality Control Fund.

Strategic Plan Initiative: MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE





BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TURLOCK

IN THE MATTER OF CONSIDERING THE } RESOLUTION NO. 2015-177
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT }
REPORT (FEIR) FOR THE NORTH }
VALLEY REGIONAL RECYCLED WATER }
PROGRAM (NVRRWP) IN ACCORDANCE }
WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL }
QUALITY ACT (CEQA), AND MAKING }
CERTAIN FINDINGS CONCERNING }
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS AND }
MITIGATION MEASURES, AND }
ADOPTING A MITIGATION MONITORING }
AND REPORTING PROGRAM, IN }
CONNECTION WITH APPROVAL OF THE }
NVRRWP CONTEMPLATED BY THE FINAL }
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT, }
AND APPROVING SPECIFIED NVRRWP }
COMPONENTS }

WHEREAS, the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP) is the
planned construction of a water supply project that would deliver up to 59,000 acre-feet per
year (AFY) of recycled water produced by the cities of Modesto and Turlock via pipeline to
the Delta-Mendota Canal (DMC), a feature of the Central Valley Project owned by U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation). Recycled water will be conveyed from the Cities of
Modesto and Turlock through pipelines from their wastewater treatment facilities, crossing
under the San Joaquin River, ending at the DMC. Water in the DMC would then be
conveyed directly to Del Puerto Water District (DPWD) turnouts and thus to its customers.
Recycled water also may be provided to Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA)
designated Refuges located south of the Delta to deliver a portion of their supplemental
water needs. The entire NVRRWP analyzed in the EIR includes a pipeline from the City of
Turlock conveying recycled water either directly to the DMC or conveying recycled water to
the City of Modesto’s Jennings Water Quality Control Facility (Jennings Plant). That
pipeline and any associated facilities for conveying recycled water from the City of Turlock
would be implemented by the City of Turlock.  The portion of the NVRRWP that would be
implemented jointly by the City of Turlock and City of Modesto would include improvements
to an existing pump station at the Jennings Plant and a pipeline that would convey recycled
water from the Jennings Plant under the San Joaquin River to a new point of discharge to
the DMC. The NVRRWP is located partially within the Jennings Wastewater Treatment
Plant, which is within Modesto City limits, and partially in unincorporated Stanislaus
County.  The DMC is under the jurisdiction of Reclamation; and

WHEREAS, the NVRRWP is subject to federal, as well as City of Modesto, County
of Stanislaus, and state environmental review requirements, because the NVRRWP hopes
to obtain federal funds from Reclamation, and because the Project requires Reclamation
approval actions, an Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 2

(EIR/EIS) was prepared for the Project for purposes of compliance with the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).  The
City of Modesto is the lead agency under CEQA and Reclamation is the lead agency under
the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA).  Cooperating agencies under NEPA include
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, which has federal Endangered Species Act (ESA)
jurisdiction over terrestrial wildlife and freshwater fish and the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration National Marine Fisheries Service, which has ESA jurisdiction
over anadromous fish. In addition, the City of Turlock and DPWD are partnering with the
City of Modesto in developing the NVRRWP, and are thus responsible agencies under
CEQA.  The NVRRWP may require environmental approvals from the City, the County of
Stanislaus, the California Department of Transportation, the State Historic Preservation
Office, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, the State Water Resources Control
Board and Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley Region, the California
State Lands Commission, the Central Valley Flood Protection Board, the San Joaquin
Valley Air Pollution Control District, the Natural Resource Conservation Service, the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, and the National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration National Marine Fisheries Service; and

WHEREAS, the EIR/EIS analyzed considered three potential Project alternatives:
(1) the Combined Alignment Alternative; (2) the Separate Alignment Alternative; and (3) the
PID Conveyance Alternative; and

WHEREAS, the environmental review of the NVRRWP commenced with the release
of the Notice of Preparation on April 22, 2014 to public agencies and interested parties for
consultation on the scope of the EIR/EIS; and

WHEREAS, the City of Modesto and Reclamation prepared a Draft EIR/EIS dated
January 8, 2015, which reflected the independent judgment of the City of Modesto and
Reclamation as to the potential environmental effects of the Project. The Draft EIR/EIS was
circulated for a 60-day public review period between January 8, 2015 and March 11, 2015.
The City of Modesto and Reclamation held a joint public meeting regarding the Draft

EIR/EIS for the NVRRWP on February 11, 2015. The meeting was conducted in an open
house format to allow attendees to arrive at any time, talk to team members, and to review
display boards and environmental documentation. Attendees could comment either
verbally or by submittal of comment cards, but no comments were submitted at the
meeting; and

WHEREAS, public and agency comments were received and staff has prepared
written responses to all public comments received during the public comment period in a
Final EIR. The Final EIR also contains clarifications and minor revisions to information
presented in the Draft EIR/EIS. No new information was received during the comment
period or included in the Final EIR that would require recirculation of the Draft EIR under
CEQA Guidelines section 15088.5.  The Draft EIR/EIS text has been revised to include
these minor revisions and the revised text is included in the Final EIR.  The Draft EIR/EIS
and Final EIR are collectively referred to herein as the “Final EIR”; and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 3

WHEREAS, a staff report prepared for the City Council, dated August 11, 2015 and
incorporated herein by reference, described and analyzed the Project, the Draft EIR/EIS,
the Final EIR, and staff’s conclusions regarding the public comments and responses; and

WHEREAS, on July 7, 2015, the Modesto City Council certified the Final EIR at a
public meeting at which the public had an opportunity to comment; and

WHEREAS, on August 11, 2015, the Turlock City Council considered the Final EIR
and Project approvals at a public meeting at which the public had an opportunity to
comment; and

WHEREAS, the Final EIR identified potentially significant impacts that will be
reduced to a less than significant level with specified mitigation measures.  Approval of the
Project therefore requires adoption of environmental findings and a Mitigation Monitoring
and Reporting Program under CEQA; and

WHEREAS, the Final EIR did not identify significant and unavoidable environmental
impacts of the Project, thus approval of the Project therefore does not require the adoption
of a Statement of Overriding Considerations; and

WHEREAS, the Final EIR, and the City Council August 11, 2015 staff report,
regarding the Project and the Final EIR, including the analysis of the public comments,
reflect the District’s independent judgment and analysis; and

WHEREAS, the location and custodian of the Draft EIR/EIS and Final EIR and other
documents that constitute the record of proceedings for the Project is the City of Turlock,
Municipal Services, 156 S. Broadway, 2nd Floor, Turlock, CA 95380.  The Draft EIR/EIS
and Final EIR and documents relating to the Project are available for review in the District
office and on the website for the Project located at: http://www.nvr-
recycledwater.org/documents.asp; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the following NVRRWP
components: 1) the NVRRWP transmission facilities, including all necessary transmission
pipelines to transmit and deliver recycled water from the terminus of the Harding Drain
Bypass Pipeline to the DMC; (2) the addition of a new authorized point of discharge of the
City’s recycled water to the DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to add
43,259 acres in the DPWD and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the authorized
place of use for the City’s recycled water; (4) the addition of supplemental CVPIA refuge
water supplies to the authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled water; and (5) enter
into a Joint Powers Agreement for the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program.
The City of Modesto and Del Puerto Water District have separately considered approvals
of their components of the NVRRWP.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 4

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Turlock as
follows:

1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and made a part of this resolution.

2.  The City Council has reviewed and considered the Draft EIR/EIS and Final EIR
(collectively, “Final EIR”), as well as the public comments and staff’s analysis of the
comments and changes to the Draft EIR/EIS in the Final EIR.

3.  Based on its review of Project record as a whole, the City Council makes and
adopts the following findings relating to the CEQA review for the Project prior to approving
the Project:

A. The City Council has considered the Final EIR and finds it has
been completed in compliance with CEQA and the CEQA
Guidelines.

B. The City Council has independently reviewed and considered
the information contained in Final EIR, including the written
comments received during the Draft EIR/EIS review period and
the oral and written comments received at the City Council
meeting, prior to making its decision on the proposed Project.

C. The Final EIR reflects the City Council’s independent judgment
and analysis on the potential environmental impacts of the
proposed Project.  The Final EIR provides information to the
decision makers and the public on the environmental
consequences of the proposed Project.

D. The Final EIR adequately describes the proposed Project, its
significant environmental impacts, mitigation measures, and a
reasonable range of alternatives to the proposed Project.

4.  The City Council hereby adopts all findings required under CEQA regarding
environmental impacts of the Project and mitigation measures, and adopts a Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program as set forth in the CEQA Findings of Fact attached
hereto as Exhibit A (which includes Attachments 1 and 2) and incorporated herein by
reference, all in compliance with the requirements of CEQA.

5.  The City Council hereby approves the following Project components: 1) the
NVRRWP transmission facilities, including all necessary transmission pipelines to transmit
and deliver recycled water from the terminus of the Harding Drain Bypass Pipeline to the
DMC; (2) the addition of a new authorized point of discharge of the City’s recycled water to
the DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to add 43,259 acres in the DPWD
and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the authorized place of use for the City’s



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 5

recycled water; (4) the addition of supplemental CVPIA refuge water supplies to the
authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled water; and (5) entering into a Joint
Powers Agreement for the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of
Turlock this 11th day of August, 2015, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:

NOT PARTICIPATING:
ABSENT:

ATTEST:

___________________________
Stacey Tonarelli, Deputy City Clerk,
City of Turlock, County of Stanislaus,
State of California



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 6

EXHIBIT A

CEQA FINDINGS OF FACT

OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF TURLOCK

for the

NORTH VALLEY REGIONAL RECYCLED WATER
PROGRAM

AUGUST 11, 2015



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 7

I.
INTRODUCTION

The City of Turlock (City) is working with the City of Modesto and Del Puerto Water
District (Partner Agencies) to implement the North Valley Regional Recycled Water
Program (NVRRWP).  As a Partner Agency, the City of Turlock is a responsible agency
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and has considered the
Environmental Impact Report for the Project in determining whether to move forward
with implementation of those portions of the NVRRWP for which the City is responsible.

City of Modesto, as lead agency under the CEQA, and the U.S. Department of the
Interior, Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) as lead agency under the National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), prepared a joint Draft Environmental Impact
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Draft EIR/EIS) for the North Valley Regional
Recycled Water Program (NVRRWP or Project). The Draft EIR/EIS is a joint document
intended to comply with both CEQA and NEPA. (See California Code of Regulations
(CCR), Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 (State CEQA Guidelines), Section 15222
(“Preparation of Joint Documents”); and Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Title 40,
Sections 1502.25, 1506.2, and 1506.4 (authority for combining federal and state
environmental documents).  The City of Modesto has considered comments received
on the Draft EIR/EIS and has prepared a Final EIR, which addresses those comments.
While the Draft EIR/EIS was prepared by the City of Modesto and the Bureau of

Reclamation as a joint document, the Final EIR was prepared as a separate CEQA
document, which has been certified by the City of Modesto on July 7, 2015.
Reclamation will separately circulate a Final EIS for 30 days before issuing a Record of
Decision for the NVRRWP.  In its entirety, the Final EIR consists of the June 19, 2015
Final EIR (“Final EIR”, or “FEIR”) (EA/UP&P No. 2014-02; State Clearinghouse No.
2014042068), which includes Volume I containing the entire text of the Draft EIR/EIS
that was published on January 8, 2015, plus Volume II including the comments that
were received during the public review period and responses to those comments
showing minor revisions and clarifications based on comments received.
As described in the Final EIR, the NVRRWP is the planned construction of a water
supply project that would deliver up to 59,000 acre-feet per year (AFY) of recycled
water produced by the cities of Modesto and Turlock via pipeline to the Delta-Mendota
Canal (DMC), a feature of the Central Valley Project owned by Reclamation. Instead of
discharging into the San Joaquin River, recycled water will be conveyed from Modesto
and Turlock through pipelines from their wastewater treatment facilities, crossing under
the San Joaquin River, ending at the DMC. Water in the DMC would then be conveyed
directly to DPWD turnouts and thus to its customers. This project also proposes to
provide water to Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) designated refuges
located south of the Delta to deliver a portion of their supplemental water needs.  The
proposed pipeline alignment is divided into two segments.  One segment, which is
under the jurisdiction of the City of Turlock, will convey recycled water from the City of
Turlock through a pipeline beginning at the end of the existing Harding Drain Bypass
Pipeline either directly west to the DMC, or through a pipeline conveying water north to



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 8

the City of Modesto’s Jennings Water Quality Control Facility (Jennings Plant), where it
would be combined with recycled water from Modesto.  The second pipeline segment,
which is under the jurisdiction of the City of Modesto, would extend from the Jennings
Plant, crossing under the San Joaquin River to convey water to the DMC.  The
NVRRWP is located partially within the Jennings Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is
within the Modesto City limits, and partially in unincorporated Stanislaus County.  The
DMC is under the jurisdiction of Reclamation.
These findings have been prepared in accordance with CEQA (Pub. Resources Code,
§ 21000 et seq.) and its implementing guidelines (“CEQA Guidelines”) (Cal. Code
Regs., tit. 14, § 15000 et seq.).

II.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION

A. LOCATION

The NVRRWP includes pipelines in primarily in existing streets from the City of Turlock
Harding Drain Bypass Pipeline either directly to the DMC or to the Jennings Plant where
water from Turlock would be combined with recycled water produced by the City of
Modesto; this pipeline is under the jurisdiction of the City of Turlock.  Facilities under
the jurisdiction of the City of Modesto begin at the Jennings Plant, where an existing
pump station would be modified. From the Jennings Plant Pump Station a pipeline
would be constructed under the San Joaquin River using some form of trenchless
technology.  The pipeline would continue on existing streets to a discharge structure on
the DMC.  The Project site is located partially within the City of Modesto (the Jennings
Plant is within Modesto City limits) and partially in unincorporated Stanislaus County as
illustrated in Figures 2-2 and 2-5 of the DEIR (pages 2-4 and 2-11).

B. OVERVIEW

The City of Turlock has worked cooperatively with the City of Modesto and Del Puerto
Water District (Partner Agencies) to develop the NVRRWP.  The Partner Agencies
worked together to define shared objectives and develop feasible alternatives to provide
a supply of recycled water to DPWD.  Their efforts culminated in the preparation of a
Feasibility Study for the NVRRWP, which was completed in December 2013.  The
Feasibility Study documents the process for development of alternatives and includes
an economic and financial analysis.
The proposed project is the Combined Alignment Alternative that was evaluated in the
EIR/EIS.  The Combined Alignment Alternative consists of two reaches totaling 69,800
linear feet, extending from the western end of the City of Turlock’s Harding Drain
Bypass Pipeline to the DMC. The south-north reach from the Harding Drain Bypass
Pipeline would be 42 inches in diameter and would extend from the western end of the
Harding Drain Bypass Pipeline near the existing standpipe structure on South
Carpenter Road, then parallel South Carpenter Road north to West Main Street, then
turn west on West Main Street to Jennings Road. At Jennings Road, the pipeline would



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 9

then turn north for about 1.8 miles.  From Jennings Road, the pipeline would then
extend west along existing dirt roads through agricultural fields owned by Modesto and
terminate at the existing Jennings Plant outfall pump station near the southeastern end
of the Jennings Plant.  Combined flows from the pumping facility at the Jennings Plant,
which would be modified to meet capacity needs, would then travel in a 54-inch
pipeline, cross under the San Joaquin River, and extend west to the DMC along Lemon
Avenue, through farmland, and along Zacharias Road.  The proposed pipeline would
cross a total of five irrigation canals along the Lemon Avenue alignment, all of which are
operated by the PID.
The project applicants are the City of Modesto, City of Turlock and Del Puerto Water
District.

C. PROJECT OBJECTIVES

As set forth in the Draft EIR/EIS (page 1-12), the overall objective of the proposed
project is to maximize beneficial use of a sustainable, alternative water supply within the
region, which would address reductions in water supplies from the CVP and reduce the
reliance on groundwater use. Specifically, the objectives of the project are as follows:

 Establish an alternative, reliable, long-term water supply of up to 59,000 acre
feet per year (AFY) of recycled water for DPWD and refuges;

 Maximize beneficial use of recycled water by DPWD customers and refuges;
 Maximize Project Partners’ control of operations and delivery of water to DPWD

and refuges, while recognizing the need for coordination with Reclamation and the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority;

 Establish a long-term water right(s) to allow for the beneficial use of recycled
water;

 Maximize use of existing facilities for treatment / delivery of recycled water;
 Provide supplemental annual water supplies annually to SOD refuges to meet

CVPIA Sections 3406(b)(3) and 3406(d)(2) requirements;
 Avoid or minimize, through incorporation of design constraints and management

practices, impacts to environmental resources such as surface water, groundwater
supplies, land subsidence, groundwater quality and biological resources including
sensitive species; and

 Deliver agricultural water to DPWD at a cost that supports regional economic
sustainability.

The proposed project is needed to offset the significant reduction in CVP water
allocations to DPWD associated with Delta pumping restrictions, drought conditions,
and climate change. In addition, the proposed project is needed to offset anticipated
effects (e.g., overdraft, subsidence, water quality issues) from increased groundwater
pumping that have occurred and would likely continue to occur with the absence of an
alternative water supply.
Based on its own review of the Final EIR and other information and testimony received
in connection with the Project, the City Council finds these objectives to be acceptable
and important from a public policy standpoint.  In choosing to approve the Project, the



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 10

City of Turlock seeks to further these objectives, and accords them weight in
considering the feasibility of the alternatives set forth in the EIR (See Sierra Club v.
County of Napa (2004) 121 Cal.App.4th 1490, 1507-1508).

D. DISCRETIONARY APPROVALS

Project approval requires the City of Modesto, as CEQA lead agency, Reclamation as
NEPA lead agency, the City of Turlock as responsible agency, as well as certain other
responsible agencies, to take discrete planning and regulatory actions to approve the
overall Project. In accordance with CEQA, the City of Turlock must consider the EIR
and determine that the Project complies with CEQA, adopt findings for all significant
impacts identified, certify that the findings have been considered prior to project
approval, and adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program. The City of Turlock
will consider taking the following actions: (1) design and construction of the NVRRWP
transmission facilities, including all necessary transmission pipelines to transmit and
deliver recycled water from the terminus of the Harding Drain Bypass Pipeline to the
DMC; (2) the addition of a new authorized point of discharge of the City’s recycled
water to the DMC; (3) submittal of a Wastewater Change Petition to add 43,259 acres
in the DPWD and 124,897 acres in the wildlife refuges, as the authorized place of use
for the City’s recycled water; and (4) the addition of supplemental CVPIA refuge water
supplies to the authorized purposes of use for the City’s recycled water.
The City of Turlock then will file a Notice of Determination with the State Clearinghouse
that will identify whether the project will have significant impacts, if mitigation measures
were included as conditions of project approval, that findings were made, and if a
Statement of Overriding Considerations was adopted. Reclamation will use this
document to support a Record of Decision to document Reclamation’s decisions
regarding the potential federal actions for the project.  Described below are the other
permits, reviews, and approvals that would be required for project construction:

Agency Type of Approval
FEDERAL
Reclamation Warren Act Contract
Reclamation Possible funding through Public Law 102-575,

Title XVI
Reclamation Land Use Authorization for Construction of

Facilities within DMC right-of-way (ROW)
Reclamation Purchase contract for supplemental supplies for

Refuge Water Supply Program under CVPIA
Section 3406(d)(2)

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Clean Water Act, Section 404 Permit for any fill of
wetlands or waters of the US

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Section 10 Permit for pipeline crossing under San
Joaquin River, which is a navigable waterway.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife & National
Oceanic and Atmospheric

Section 7 Consultation/Biological Opinions



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 11

Agency Type of Approval
Administration (NOAA) National
Marine Fisheries Service
Natural Resource Conservation
Service

Farmland Conversion Assessment

STATE
State Water Resources Control
Board

Wastewater Change Petition (Petition for
Change)

California Department of Fish and
Wildlife (CDFW)

Streambed Alteration Agreement for pipeline
crossings of streams

CDFW Incidental Take Permit for California Endangered
Species Act (CESA)

CalOSHA Construction Permit / Tunnel Classification
CA Historic Preservation Office Section 106 Consultation
CA State Lands Commission Lease Agreement
Caltrans Encroachment Permit
Central Valley Regional Water
Quality Control Board (CVRWQCB)

Clean Water Act, Section 401 Water Quality
Certification

CVRWQCB Notice of Intent for coverage under Statewide
Construction Stormwater Permit (Section 402
Clean Water Act)

CVRWQCB Notice of Intent for coverage under Low-Threat
Discharge Order for Dewatering during
Construction and for Pipeline Discharges for
Testing and Startup

CVRWQCB NPDES Permit for Discharge to the DMC
Central Valley Flood Protection
Board

Possible encroachment permit

LOCAL
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District

Authority to Construct / Permit to Operate

Stanislaus County Encroachment permit, grading permit, building
permit, and tree removal permit

Stanislaus County Williamson Act cancellation (if needed)
Genesee & Wyoming Railroad Utility Occupancy License for crossing of CFNR
Draft EIR/EIS p. 1-14

III.
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW PROCESS

A Notice of Preparation (NOP) for the NVRRWP was mailed on April 22, 2014, to
elected officials, government and other resource agencies, and all individuals and
department entities that may have a concern or interest in the Project. Copies of the
NOP were made available to the public at Modesto City Hall, at City of Turlock offices



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 12

and on the NVRRWP website. Additionally, the City of Modesto held an open house to
allow interested members of the public to learn more about the project, have questions
answered by NVRRWP staff, and provide input on the project. The public meeting was
held on May 13, 2014, at the Modesto City Hall at 1010 Tenth Street, Modesto, CA,
with approximately 20 members of the public participating. In June 2014, the City of
Modesto prepared a Scoping Report that summarized public noticing, communication,
and scoping efforts completed for the project up to that date. The Scoping Report is
included in the Draft EIR/EIS, and provides a full summary of the public meeting and
the comments received in Appendix A.  Additional public outreach and communication
efforts completed after May 2014 are discussed below under the heading “Public
Participation.”  The City of Turlock, City of Modesto and Reclamation have coordinated
with several public agencies that may have an interest in the project as part of the
project development process. Numerous agencies and organizations were provided
notification of the NOP, and provided comments on the scope of the project and its
associated environmental documentation. These communications and comments are
summarized in the Scoping Report prepared for the project.  The main coordination or
communications with agencies is described below.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Reclamation invited the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to be a cooperating
agency for preparation of the EIS.  USACE declined to be a cooperating agency, but
indicated that based on review of the project description it appeared that the project can
be authorized under Nationwide Permit number 12, Utility Lines (email from Kathleen
Dadey, Chief, California South Branch, Regulatory Division, USACE Sacramento
District to Ben Lawrence of Reclamation). A draft wetland delineation report was sent to
the USACE on April 29, 2015, for verification.  USACE has not completed verification
as of June 18, 2015.  The City of Modesto will request coverage under Nationwide
Permit 12 for any construction-period fill of wetlands or waters of the U.S.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service
Reclamation invited the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) to be a cooperating
agency for preparation of the EIS.  USFWS agreed to work with Reclamation as a
cooperating agency and both agencies signed a Memorandum of Understanding
defining their relationship in the EIS preparation process.  As a cooperating agency,
USFWS staff have participated in regular environmental team conference calls.
Reclamation will submit a Biological Assessment to USFWS and will seek their
concurrence regarding the potential for the NVRRWP to affect listed species.

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National Marine Fisheries Service
Reclamation invited the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration National
Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) to be a cooperating agency for preparation of the EIS.
NMFS agreed to work with Reclamation as a cooperating agency and both agencies

signed a Memorandum of Understanding defining their relationship in the EIS
preparation process.  As a cooperating agency, NMFS staff have participated in regular
environmental team conference calls.  Reclamation will submit a Biological Assessment



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 13

to NMFS and will seek their concurrence regarding the potential for the NVRRWP to
affect listed species.

California Department of Fish and Wildlife
Future consultation with California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) will be
required to obtain a 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement to authorize construction of
the pipeline crossing under the San Joaquin River. The project includes avoidance and
mitigation measures designed to direct impacts to state-listed species. However, if
necessary the City of Modesto would apply for a California Fish and Game Code
Section 2081 Take Permit.

State Historic Preservation Office
Reclamation will conduct Section 106 consultation with the State Historic Preservation
Office (SHPO) under the National Historic Preservation Act.  The DMC has been
determined to be eligible for the National Register.  The discharge facility for the
NVRRWP would be adjacent to, but outside of the Canal, and is not expected to affect
the integrity of the DMC. The design of the discharge structure is intended to allow
construction to be completed without any modifications to the canal, but if there are any
effects on the canal during construction the structure would be restored to its existing
condition.  Reclamation will seek concurrence from SHPO that the proposed project
would not result in any adverse impacts on historic resources.

Public Participation
In addition to the formal scoping meeting additional public outreach efforts have been
made to provide information to area residents and to allow interested stakeholders to
provide input on and raise issues and concerns about the project.  Presentations have
been made to the Farm Bureau and Almond Board of California and notices were sent
to 200 landowners/customers in the Del Puerto Water District.

The City of Modesto and Reclamation released the Draft EIR/EIS on January 8, 2015
for public review and comment. The comment period closed on March 11, 2015. This
period satisfied the requirement for a minimum 45-day and maximum 60-day public
review period as set forth in Section 15105 of the CEQA Guidelines. Consistent with
Section 15202 of the CEQA Guidelines, the City of Modesto conducted a meeting to
receive public input on the Draft EIR/EIS at Modesto City Hall on February 11, 2015, at
which time agencies and the public were given the opportunity to provide comments on
the Draft EIR/EIS.

The Project’s Final EIR was made available to the public and commenting agencies on
June 19, 2015.  Notice of the availability of the Final EIR was mailed to elected officials,
government and other resource agencies, and all individuals and department entities
that may have a concern or interest in the project, and copies of the Final EIR were
made available on the NVRRWP website and at Modesto City Hall as well as offices of
the City of Turlock, and Del Puerto Water District.  On July 7, 2015, the City of Modesto



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 14

City Council considered certification of the Final EIR and approval of the Project at their
regular City Council meeting. The City Council considered certification of the Final EIR
and adoption of CEQA Findings, and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program at
that hearing.

On July 8, 2015, the Del Puerto Water District Board of Directors considered the Final
EIR and approval of the Project at a Special Board meeting. The Board considered the
Final EIR and adoption of CEQA Findings, and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program at that hearing.

On August 11, 2015, the City of Turlock City Council considered the Final EIR and
approval of the Project at a regular council meeting. The City Council considered the
Final EIR and adoption of CEQA Findings, and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program at that hearing.

The Draft EIR/EIS included an evaluation of 22 environmental issue areas and a
discussion of significant impacts under CEQA, together with other NEPA- and CEQA-
mandated issues as well (e.g., cumulative impacts, growth-inducing impacts). The 22
environmental issue areas are as follows:

 Aesthetics
 Agriculture and Forestry Resources
 Air Quality
 Biological Resources
 Cultural Resources
 Energy Resources
 Environmental Justice
 Geology and Soils
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials
 Hydrology and Water Quality
 Indian Trust Assets
 Land Use and Planning
 Noise
 Population and Housing
 Public Services and Utilities
 Recreation
 Socioeconomics
 Transportation and Traffic

(Draft EIR/EIS, pp. 3.1-1 to 3.19-15)

The Draft EIR/EIS evaluated the significance of impacts under CEQA within the
following 17 environmental areas:



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 15

 Aesthetics
 Agriculture and Forestry Resources
 Air Quality
 Biological Resources
 Cultural Resources
 Energy Resources
 Geology and Soils
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
 Hazards and Hazardous Materials
 Hydrology and Water Quality
 Land Use and Planning
 Noise
 Population and Housing
 Public Services and Utilities
 Recreation
 Transportation and Traffic
 Cumulative Impacts

(Draft EIR/EIS, pp. 3.1-1 to 3.19-15)

IV.
RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

In accordance with Public Resources Code section 21167.6, subdivision (e), the record
of proceedings for the City of Turlock’s decision on the Project includes the following
documents:

 The NOP and all other public notices issued by the City of Modesto in
conjunction with the Project;

 All comments submitted by agencies or members of the public during the
comment period on the NOP;

 The Draft EIR/EIS for the Project (January 2015) and all appendices;

 All comments submitted by agencies or members of the public during the
comment period on the Draft EIR/EIS;

 The Final EIR for the Project, including comments received on the Draft EIR/EIS,
the responses to those comments, clarifications and minor corrections to
information presented in the Draft EIR/EIS, and appendices;

 Documents cited or referenced in the Draft EIR/EIS and Final EIR;



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 16

 The MMRP for the Project;

 All findings and resolutions adopted by the City Council in connection with the
Project and all documents cited or referred to therein;

 All reports, studies, memoranda, maps, staff reports, or other planning
documents relating to the Project prepared by the City of Modesto, consultants to
the City of Modesto, or responsible or trustee agencies with respect to
compliance with the requirements of CEQA and with respect to the NVRRWP;

 All documents submitted to the City of Modesto or to the City of Turlock by other
public agencies or members of the public in connection with the Project, up
through the close of the City Council meeting on August 11, 2015;

 Any minutes and/or verbatim transcripts of all information sessions, public
meetings, and public hearings held by the City of Modesto or the City of Turlock
in connection with the Project;

 Any documentary or other evidence submitted to the City of Modesto or the City
of Turlock at such information sessions, public meetings, and public hearings;

 All environmental documents prepared under CEQA and NEPA referred to in the
Draft EIR/EIS and Final EIR, including, but not limited to:

City of Modesto Phase 2 Improvements – Jennings Road Secondary Wastewater
Treatment Plant Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration Report (State
Clearinghouse # 2010092062).

City of Turlock Harding Drain Bypass Project Environmental Impact Report. (State
Clearinghouse # 2003062002).

 All County or other public agency planning or other documents cited in materials
prepared by or submitted to the City of Modesto;

 Any and all resolutions and ordinances adopted by the City of Turlock regarding
the Project, and all staff reports, analyses, and summaries related to the
adoption of those resolutions and ordinances;

 Matters of common knowledge to the City of Turlock, including but not limited to
federal, State, and local laws and regulations;

 Any documents expressly cited in these findings, in addition to those cited
above; and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 17

 Any other materials required for the record of proceedings by Public Resources
Code section 21167.6, subdivision (e).

The documents constituting the record of proceedings are available for review by
responsible agencies and interested members of the public during normal business
hours at the City of Turlock, Municipal Services, 156 S. Broadway, 2nd Floor, Turlock,
CA 95380. The custodian of these documents is Michael Cooke.

V.
FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER CEQA

Public Resources Code section 21002 provides that “public agencies should not
approve projects as proposed if there are feasible alternatives or feasible mitigation
measures available which would substantially lessen the significant environmental
effects of such projects[.]” The same statute provides that the procedures required by
CEQA “are intended to assist public agencies in systematically identifying both the
significant effects of proposed projects and the feasible alternatives or feasible
mitigation measures which will avoid or substantially lessen such significant effects.”
Section 21002 goes on to provide that “in the event [that] specific economic, social, or
other conditions make infeasible such project alternatives or such mitigation measures,
individual projects may be approved in spite of one or more significant effects thereof.”

The mandate and principles announced in Public Resources Code section 21002 are
implemented, in part, through the requirement that agencies must adopt findings before
approving projects for which EIRs are required. For each significant environmental
effect identified in an EIR for a project, the approving agency must issue a written
finding reaching one or more of three permissible conclusions. The first such finding is
that changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect as identified in
the Final EIR. The second finding is that such changes or alterations are within the
responsibility and jurisdiction of another public agency and not the agency making the
finding, and that such changes have been adopted by, or can and should be adopted
by, such other agency. The third potential finding is that specific economic, legal, social,
technological, or other considerations, including provision of employment opportunities
for highly trained workers, make infeasible the mitigation measures or project
alternatives identified in the final EIR and, therefore, the identified impact is significant
and unavoidable (CEQA Guidelines, § 15091).

As explained elsewhere in these findings, “feasible” means capable of being
accomplished in a successful manner within a reasonable period of time, taking into



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 18

account economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors (CEQA
Guidelines § 15364).  The concept of “feasibility” also encompasses the question of
whether a particular alternative or mitigation measure promotes the underlying goals
and objectives of a project (Sierra Club v. County of Napa (2004) 121 Cal.App.4th
1490, 1506-1509 (court upholds CEQA findings rejecting alternatives in reliance on
applicant’s project objectives); see also California Native Plant Society v. City of Santa
Cruz (2009) 177 Cal.App.4th 957, 1001 (CNPS) (“an alternative ‘may be found
infeasible on the ground it is inconsistent with the project objectives as long as the
finding is supported by substantial evidence in the record’”) (quoting Kostka & Zischke,
Practice Under the Cal. Environmental Quality Act [Cont.Ed.Bar 2d ed. 2009] (Kostka),
§ 17.309, p. 825); In re Bay-Delta Programmatic Environmental Impact Report
Coordinated Proceedings (2008) 43 Cal.4th 1143, 1165, 1166 (Bay-Delta) (“[i]n the
CALFED program, feasibility is strongly linked to achievement of each of the primary
program objectives;” “a lead agency may structure its EIR alternative analysis around a
reasonable definition of underlying purpose and need not study alternatives that cannot
achieve that basic goal”).  Moreover, “‘feasibility’ under CEQA encompasses
‘desirability’ to the extent that desirability is based on a reasonable balancing of the
relevant economic, environmental, social, legal, and technological factors.” (City of Del
Mar v. City of San Diego (1982) 133 Cal.App.3d 410, 417 (City of Del Mar); see also
CNPS, supra, 177 Cal.App.4th at p. 1001 (after weighing “‘economic, environmental,
social, and technological factors,’ ... ‘an agency may conclude that a mitigation measure
or alternative is impractical or undesirable from a policy standpoint and reject it as
infeasible on that ground”) (quoting Kostka, supra, § 17.29, p. 824).

For purposes of these findings (including the findings in Attachment 1 attached hereto),
the term “avoid” refers to the effectiveness of one or more mitigation measures to
reduce an otherwise significant effect to a less than significant level. In contrast, the
term “substantially lessen” refers to the effectiveness of such measure or measures to
substantially reduce the severity of a significant effect, but not to reduce that effect to a
less than significant level.

As explained above, CEQA requires that the lead agency adopt feasible mitigation
measures or, in some instances, feasible alternatives to substantially lessen or avoid
significant environmental impacts that would otherwise occur.  With respect to a project
for which significant impacts are not avoided, a public agency, after adopting proper
findings, may nevertheless approve the project if the agency first adopts a statement of
overriding considerations setting forth the specific reasons for the agency findings that
the Project’s benefits outweigh its unavoidable adverse environmental effects.  The
EIR/EIS found that there were no significant unavoidable adverse environmental
effects.

VI.
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

A Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program has been prepared for the Project, and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 19

is being approved by the City Council by the same Resolution that adopts these
findings. The City of Modesto, as lead agency will use the Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Program to track compliance with Project mitigation measures. The Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Program will remain available for public review during the
compliance period.   The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program is attached
hereto as Attachment 2.

VII.
SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS AND MITIGATION MEASURES

The Final EIR identified a number of significant and potentially significant environmental
effects (or impacts) that the Project will cause or contribute to.  All of these significant
effects can be fully avoided through the adoption of feasible mitigation measures.

A. Impacts and Mitigation Measures (see Attachment 1)

The City Council findings with respect to the Project’s significant effects and mitigation
measures are set forth in the attachment to these findings (Attachment 1). The findings
set forth in Attachment 1 are hereby incorporated by reference and included as an
attachment to this document.

Attachment 1 does not attempt to describe the full analysis of each environmental
impact contained in the Final EIR. Instead, the attachment provides a summary
description of each impact, describes the applicable mitigation measures identified in
the Final EIR and adopted by the City of Modesto, and states the findings on the
significance of each impact after imposition of the adopted mitigation measures. A full
explanation of these environmental findings and conclusions can be found in the Final
EIR, and these findings hereby incorporate by reference the discussion and analysis in
those documents supporting the Final EIR’s determinations regarding mitigation
measures and the Project’s impacts and mitigation measures designed to address
those impacts.

In making these findings, the City of Turlock ratifies, adopts, and incorporates into these
findings the analysis and explanation in the Final EIR, and ratifies, adopts, and
incorporates in these findings the determinations and conclusions of the Final EIR
relating to environmental impacts and mitigation measures, except to the extent any
such determinations and conclusions are specifically and expressly modified by these
findings.

The City of Modesto has adopted all of the mitigation measures identified in Attachment
1. Some of the measures identified are also within the jurisdiction and control of other
agencies. To the extent any of the mitigation measures are within the jurisdiction of
other agencies, the City of Modesto and City of Turlock find those agencies can and
should implement those measures within their jurisdiction and control.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 20

B. Findings Regarding Additional Mitigation Measures Proposed by
Comments

In comments on the Draft EIR/EIS, commenters suggested additional mitigation
measures and/or modifications to the measures recommended in the Draft EIR/EIS.  As
indicated in the Final EIR Chapter 8, the City of Modesto modified the following
proposed measures in response to such comments:

● Mitigation Measure AIR-1. The mitigation has been revised to incorporate additional
suggested measures such as limitations on idling.  Use of newer tier engines and
vehicles will be implemented to the extent feasible, but would not be required because
requirements for specific engine tiers and newer trucks would be significantly ahead of
CARB implementation schedules. Therefore, the mitigation measure leaves these as
measures that the contractor will be encouraged to implement to the extent feasible.
There is no change to the significance conclusion and the implementation of voluntary
emission offset agreement will ensure that NOx emissions are fully mitigated consistent
with general conformity requirements.

● Mitigation Measure BIO-1d.  The mitigation has been revised to specify that the frac-
out plan be provided to the California State Land Commission.

● Mitigation Measure BIO-12. The revised measure specifies that no-disturbance
buffers for nesting raptors would be established by a qualified biologist, with
consultation with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, as appropriate.

● Mitigation Measure CUL-2.  The revised measure requires that if human remains are
discovered and determined to be Native American, the Native American Heritage
Commission shall be notified by phone within 24 hours of the discovery.

For other new mitigation measures or changes to existing mitigations proposed in
comments submitted on the Draft EIR/EIS or comments submitted elsewhere in the
record, which are described below, the City of Modesto carefully considered the
proposed mitigations, and found the proposed mitigations infeasible, not necessary to
avoid identified significant impacts of the Project, or otherwise rejected the suggested
mitigation for the reasons set forth in the Final EIR or elsewhere in the record, which
are incorporated herein by this reference.

In considering specific recommendations on mitigation measures from commenters, the
City of Modesto was guided by CEQA’s legal standard to substantially lessen or avoid
significant environmental effects to the extent feasible. Moreover, comments frequently
offer suggestions regarding how a commenter believes that a particular mitigation
measure can be modified, or perhaps changed significantly, in order to more effectively,
in the commenter’s opinion, reduce the severity of environmental effects. However, the
mitigation measures included in the Final EIR represent the professional judgment and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 21

long experience of the expert staff and environmental consultants. The City of Modesto
therefore believes, and the City of Turlock concurs, that these recommended
mitigations should not be modified unless necessary to comply with CEQA legal
standards, and the lead agency has discretion to make policy decisions presented by
mitigations. Thus, in considering commenters’ suggested changes or additions to the
mitigation measures, in determining whether to accept such suggestions, either in
whole or in part, the following factors, among others have been considered: (i) whether
the suggestion relates to a significant and unavoidable environmental effect of the
NVRRWP, or instead relates to an effect that can already be mitigated to less-than-
significant levels by proposed mitigation measures in the Final EIR; (ii) whether the
proposed language represents a clear improvement, from an environmental standpoint,
over the draft language that a commenter seeks to replace; (iii) whether the proposed
language is sufficiently clear as to be easily understood by those who will implement the
mitigation as finally adopted; (iv) whether the language might be too inflexible to allow
for pragmatic implementation; (v) whether the suggested mitigations are “feasible” as
defined under CEQA, including being able to be accomplished in a successful manner
in a reasonable period of time taking into account economic, environmental, technical,
legal, social or other factors; and (vi) whether the proposed language is consistent with
the Project’s objectives.

As is evident from the specific responses given to specific suggested mitigations set
forth in Chapter 8 of the Final EIR, City of Modesto staff and consultants spent a
significant amount of time carefully considering and weighing proposed mitigation
language. For suggested mitigation not incorporated or adopted by the City, the City of
Modesto finds, and the City of Turlock concurs, that the measure either was not
necessary to reduce a significant impact to less than significant, or infeasible.

Comments on the Draft EIR/EIS proposed mitigation measures to address the export of
wastewater from lands overlying the Turlock subbasin.  As explained in the responses
presented in Chapter 8 of the Final EIR, when the NVRRWP is operating, wastewater
that is currently discharged to the San Joaquin River, which flows out to the ocean
through the Delta, instead will have additional treatment and then be conveyed to the
Del Puerto Water District and South of Delta wildlife refuges.  Implementation of the
NVRRWP would result in some minimal reductions in groundwater recharge to the
western portion of the Turlock groundwater subbasin because of slight reductions in
flows in the San Joaquin River.  However, these reductions are not expected to have
any significant effects on groundwater conditions in this subbasin, both because the
change will only be a very small percentage of the total subbasin average annual inflow
and because the change will occur in a portion of the subbasin where groundwater
levels already are high.  As a result, mitigation would not be required.

C. Findings Regarding Absence of Significant New Information Requiring
Recirculation of Draft EIR

CEQA Guidelines Section 15088.5 requires a lead agency to recirculate an EIR for



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 22

further review and comment when significant new information is added to the EIR after
public notice is given of the availability of the Draft EIR but before certification of the
Final EIR.  New information added to an EIR is not “significant” unless the EIR is
changed in a way that deprives the public of a meaningful opportunity to comment upon
a substantial adverse environmental effect of the project or a feasible way to mitigate or
avoid such an effect that the project proponent declines to implement.  The CEQA
Guidelines provide the following examples of significant new information under this
standard:

 A new significant environmental impact would result from the project or from a
new mitigation measure proposed to be implemented.

 A substantial increase in the severity of an environmental impact would result
unless mitigation is adopted that reduces the impact to a level of insignificance.

 A feasible project alternative or mitigation measure considerably different from
others previously analyzed would clearly lessen the environmental impacts of the
project, but the project’s proponents decline to adopt it.

 The Draft EIR was so fundamentally and basically inadequate and conclusory in
nature that meaningful public review and comment were precluded. (Mountain
Lion Coalition v. Fish and Game Com. (1989) 214 Cal.App.3d 1043).

Recirculation is not required where the new information added to the EIR merely
clarifies or amplifies or makes insignificant modifications in an adequate EIR.  The
above standard is “not intend[ed] to promote endless rounds of revision and
recirculation of EIRs.”  (Laurel Heights Improvement Assn. v. Regents of the University
of California (1993) 6 Cal. 4th 1112, 1132).  “Recirculation was intended to be an
exception, rather than the general rule.”  (Ibid.)

The Final EIR incorporates information developed after the Draft EIR was completed,
and contains additions, clarifications, modifications, and other changes.  As noted in
Section VIII.B, comments on the Draft EIR either expressly or implicitly sought changes
to proposed mitigation measures identified in the Draft EIR, as well as additional
mitigation measures.  As explained in the Final EIR (Chapter 8, Responses to
Comments), some of the suggestions were found to be appropriate and feasible and
were adopted in the Final EIR and included in the MMRP (see Section VIII.B, above).
Where changes have been made to mitigation measures and other information in the
Draft EIR, these changes do not change any conclusions on the significance of impacts
presented in the Draft EIR and do not meet any of the standards for recirculation under
CEQA Guidelines section 15088.5.

Notably, CEQA case law emphasizes that “[t]he CEQA reporting process is not
designed to freeze the ultimate proposal in the precise mold of the initial project;
indeed, new and unforeseen insights may emerge during investigation, evoking revision
of the original proposal.” (Kings County Farm Bureau v. City of Hanford (1990) 221
Cal.App.3d 692, 736-737; see also River Valley Preservation Project v. Metropolitan
Transit Development Bd. (1995) 37 Cal.App.4th 154, 168, fn. 11.)  “‘CEQA compels an



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 23

interactive process of assessment of environmental impacts and responsive project
modification which must be genuine.  It must be open to the public, premised upon a
full and meaningful disclosure of the scope, purposes, and effect of a consistently
described project, with flexibility to respond to unforeseen insights that emerge from the
process.’ [Citation.]  In short, a project must be open for public discussion and subject
to agency modification during the CEQA process.”  (Concerned Citizens of Costa Mesa,
Inc. v. 33rd Dist. Agricultural Assn. (1986) 42 Cal.3d 929, 936).

The Final EIR also includes minor edits made in response to various comments on the
Draft EIR/EIS (See Final EIR, Chapter 8).  These revisions were made for accuracy and
did not change any conclusions of the Draft EIR regarding the Project’s impacts.  The
revisions only constituted minor revisions or augmentations to information in the Draft
EIR that did not change any of the determinations regarding the significance of Project
impacts.

Thus, none of these changes involves “significant new information” triggering
recirculation because neither the additional information nor changes to the mitigation
measure resulted in any new significant environmental effects, any substantial increase
in the severity of any previously identified significant effects, or otherwise trigger
recirculation under CEQA standards.  Instead, the modifications were either
environmentally beneficial or environmentally neutral, and thus represent the kind of
changes that commonly occur as the environmental review process works towards its
conclusion.

D. Findings on Alternatives

As shown in Attachment 1, all potentially significant impacts of the Project have been
reduced to less than significant by the adoption of mitigation measures.  Therefore the
Project does not result in any significant and unavoidable impacts on a project or
cumulative level.  Since adoption of mitigation will reduce all significant impacts to less
than significant, the City of Turlock is not required under CEQA to make findings on the
feasibility of project alternatives. (Laurel Hills Homeowners Assn. v. Board of Directors
(1978) 83 Cal.App.3d 515.)



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 24

ATTACHMENT 1

SUMMARY OF IMPACTS, MITIGATION MEASURES, AND CEQA FINDINGS OF
FACT

The term “Final EIR” in this Document refers collectively to the Draft EIR/EIS and the
Final EIR.

3.1 AESTHETICS

Impact AES-2: The NVRRWP could result in new sources of substantial light and
glare.  This would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

AES-2Nighttime Construction Lighting: Nighttime construction lighting, if required,
shall be shielded and oriented downward to minimize effects on any
nearby receptors. Lighting shall be directed toward active construction
areas only, and shall have the minimum brightness necessary to
ensure worker safety.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure AES-2, which will ensure that any nighttime construction activities would use
lighting that would not affect nearby residents and would mitigate the impact to less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure AES-2 shields lights and directs them away from any
nearby receptors, thus reducing the impact of lighting  to less than significant.

3.2 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES

Impact AG-1: The NVRRWP could convert farmland to non-agricultural use by
removing topsoil. This is a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

AG-1 Stockpile Soil: Topsoil removed during project construction shall be stockpiled
for later reuse.  Soil shall be stored in a clear area of the construction
site where it would not have the potential to affect agricultural or
biological resources.  Stockpiled soil shall be covered with a tarp at all
times to prevent generation of fugitive dust.  Following pipeline



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 25

insertion, soil shall be backfilled into the trench and restored to an
appropriate level of compaction.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
AG-1, which will serve to reduce these potential impacts to less than significant after
mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure AG-1 would ensure that removal of topsoil would not
impair long-term productivity of agricultural land along the pipeline alignment.
Restoration of topsoil would land productivity is preserved , thus reducing the impact to
less than significant.

3.3 AIR QUALITY

Impact AIR-1: Construction activities would generate emissions of criteria NOx
that could exceed significance thresholds established by the San
Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, this would be considered a
potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

AIR-1 Reduce NOx Emissions:  NOx emissions associated with construction activities
shall be reduced to 10 tons per year through on-site equipment and
hauling vehicle Mitigation Measure to the extent feasible. All vehicles
and equipment used during construction shall be maintained and
properly tuned in accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications to
perform at US EPA certification levels and to perform at verified
standards applicable to retrofit technologies.  All equipment shall be
checked by a certified mechanic and determined to be running in
proper condition prior to operation.  Idling times shall be minimized
either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the
maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California
airborne toxics control measure CCR Title 13 Section 2485).
Emissions reduction methods may be chosen from any combination of
the following measures:

 Minimize the use and trips of construction equipment and
trucks by consolidating trips and loads to the extent feasible

 Minimize unnecessary idling by shutting off equipment and
trucks when not in use to the extent feasible and comply with
CARB idling regulations.

 Conduct periodic unscheduled inspections to ensure
equipment is maintained properly and in accordance with



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 26

manufacturer’s recommendations and excessive idling is not
occurring.

 Prepare inventory of all equipment prior to construction
consistent with SJVAPCD Indirect Source Review Rule.

 Develop a construction traffic and parking management plan
that minimizes traffic interference and maintains traffic flow.

The contractor will be encouraged to implement the following
measures to the extent feasible before implementation of off-site
Mitigation Measure and identify why the measures are infeasible if not
implemented in particular due to economic infeasibility:

 Use alternative fueled vehicles.
 Use newer tier engines such as US EPA Tier 4 exhaust

emissions standards for heavy-duty nonroad compression
ignition engines.

 Use of newer on-highway vehicles that meet the US EPA
exhaust emissions standards for model year 2010 and newer
heavy-duty on-highway compression ignition engines

 Use phased material hauling trips
 Use after-market pollution control devices to reduce

emissions
 Lengthen the construction schedule to reduce the annual

intensity of construction activities
If all feasible on-site measures have been implemented and annual
emissions are anticipated to still be above 10 tons per year for NOx,
then the project proponent shall enter into a Voluntary Emissions
Reduction Agreement (VERA) with SJVAPCD. The VERA would
provide pound-for-pound mitigation of air emissions increases down to
a net zero emissions per year as required under general conformity
through a process that develops, funds, and implements emission
reduction projects. SJVAPCD would serving as role of administrator of
the emissions reduction projects and verifier of the successful
mitigation effort.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the
Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures AIR-1, which will serve to reduce potential construction-related air quality
impacts to less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure AIR-1 requires a variety of emissions reduction
measures and specifies that if all feasible on-site measures have been implemented
and emissions still exceed 10 tons per year, contributions to emissions reduction
projects would be required, thus reducing the impact to less than significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 27

3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Effects on special-status plants

Impact BIO-1: Construction could adversely affect special-status plants that have
the potential to grow in the project area. This would be a potentially
significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1a Avoid or Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Plant Species: To the
extent feasible, project-related activities shall avoid habitats with the
potential to support special-status plants, including alkali flats, alkali
scrub, alkali pools, and freshwater wetlands. To the extent feasible,
the proposed project shall minimize potential impacts to special-status
plants by utilizing trenchless construction techniques within habitats
with the potential to support special-status plants.

BIO-1b Perform Focused Surveys for Special-Status Plant Species in
Suitable Habitats: Within one year prior to commencement of
construction activities, a qualified botanist shall perform surveys for
special-status plant species within potentially suitable habitat in the
vicinity of open-cut construction areas (Survey areas are shown in
Attachment A to the MMRP). Floristic surveys shall be performed
according to the Protocols for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts to
Specials Status Native Plant Populations and Natural Communities
(CDFG 2009 or current version). Floristic surveys shall include the use
of a reference population, as reasonably feasible, to increase the
likelihood of detection, and shall be performed during the appropriate
bloom period(s) for each species. If special-status plants are detected
within a 100-foot radius or within the microwatershed of an open-cut
construction area (including pits that would be used for trenchless
construction), Mitigation Measure BIO-1c shall be implemented

BIO-1c Monitor or Compensate for Impacts to Special-Status Plant Species:
The locations of special-status plants within the microwatershed or
within 100 feet of construction areas shall be marked and the size of
the population shall be recorded. Locations of special-status plant
populations shall be clearly identified in the field by staking, flagging,
or fencing. The plants shall be monitored throughout the duration of
construction to determine if the project has resulted in adverse effects
(direct or indirect), as determined by a qualified botanist.

If the botanist determines that special-status plants may have been
adversely effected, then the Partner Agencies shall implement
measures to compensate for the impact. Compensation measures



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 28

may include transplanting perennial species, seed collection and
dispersal for annual species, and other conservation strategies that
shall restore and protect the viability of the local population. If
minimization measures are implemented, monitoring of plant
populations shall be conducted annually for 5 years to assess the
mitigation’s effectiveness. The performance standard for the mitigation
shall be no net reduction in the size or viability of the local population.

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1a, BIO-1b, BIO-1c and BIO-1d, and therefore this impact would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1a through BIO-1d, which will ensure sensitive habitats are avoided to
the extent feasible.  Where habitat avoidance is not possible, special status plants
would be identified and protected, and if any plants are adversely affected,
conservation strategies will be employed to protect the viability of the local plant
population.  A frac-out prevention plan would be implemented to ensure that plants in
riparian zones are protected. Therefore, with the implementation of these measures,
the impact will be less than significant.

Effects on vernal pool branchiopods

Impact BIO-2: Construction of the project could adversely affect vernal pool
branchiopods that have the potential to occur in the alkali pool and
swale habitat on the south side of West Main Avenue. This would be a
potentially significant impact.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 29

Mitigation Measures

BIO-2a Avoid Impacts to Vernal Pool Branchiopods and their Habitat: To the
extent feasible, the project-related activities shall avoid impacts to
habitat with the potential to support Conservancy fairy shrimp,
longhorn fairy shrimp, vernal pool fairy shrimp, and vernal pool tadpole
shrimp, including alkali pools and swales. Avoidance shall be defined
as no direct or indirect effects to suitable habitat. This shall be
accomplished by avoiding construction within the microwatershed of
suitable habitat for vernal pool branchiopods.

BIO-2b Minimize and Compensate for Impacts to Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp
and Their Habitat: If direct or indirect impacts to habitat with the
potential to support vernal pool branchiopods cannot be avoided then
the following measures shall be implemented:

 Implement a storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP)
to reduce the potential for sediments and contaminants to enter
pools or depressions where vernal pool branchiopods may
occur;

 After construction, restore surface topography and drainage
to pre-construction conditions; and

 Provide off-site compensation for permanent, temporary,
and indirect impacts at ratios determined through consultation
with USFWS. The performance standard shall be no net loss in
acreage or habitat quality for vernal pool branchiopods, as
determined through consultation with USFWS.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the
Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-2a and BIO-2b, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-2a and BIO-2b, which will ensure that habitat potentially containing
vernal pool branchiopods is avoided and that indirect impacts are minimized by
implementing measures to avoid sediments and contaminants from entering habitats
adjacent to construction areas.  Preservation of habitat will be ensured by providing
compensation if any habitats are directly or indirectly affected during construction.
Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than
significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 30

Impact BIO-3: Construction could affect elderberry bushes that provide habitat for
valley elderberry longhorn beetle (VELB). This would be a potentially
significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

Effects on valley elderberry longhorn beetle

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

BIO-3a Avoid Impacts to Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle: To the extent
feasible, the project shall adhere to avoidance measures outlined in
USFWS’ Conservation Guidelines for Valley Elderberry Longhorn
Beetle (USFWS 1999). This shall include the following avoidance
measures:

 No less than 120 days prior to commencing construction, the
locations of elderberry plants within 200 feet of open-cut
construction areas shall be identified;

 Fence and flag all areas to be avoided during construction
activities including all established  elderberry shrubs within 200
feet of open-cut construction that will not be impacted by
construction activities;

 No open-cut construction within 100 feet of the dripline of
elderberry plants containing stems measuring 1.0 inch or
greater in diameter at ground level;

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor
Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). The CEAT shall
communicate the need to avoid damaging the elderberry plants
and the possible penalties for not complying with these
requirements. The CEAT will instruct work crews about the



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 31

status of the beetle and the need to protect its elderberry host
plant;

 Erect signs every 50 feet along the edge of the avoidance
area with the following information: "This area is habitat of the
valley elderberry longhorn beetle, a threatened species, and
must not be disturbed. This species is protected by the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended. Violators are
subject to prosecution, fines, and imprisonment." The signs will
be maintained for the duration of construction; and

 No insecticides, herbicides, fertilizers, or other chemicals
that might harm the beetle or its host plant would be used within
100 feet of any elderberry plant.

BIO-3b Minimize or Compensate for Impacts to Valley Elderberry Longhorn
Beetle: If elderberry plants occur within 100 feet of open-cut
construction, their locations shall be reported to the USFWS. In areas
where encroachment on the 100-foot buffer has been approved by
USFWS, a minimum setback of at least 20 feet from the dripline of
each elderberry plant shall be provided, as feasible. For any
encroachment into the 100-foot buffer or removal of elderberry plants,
the Partner Agencies shall implement measures to compensate for
impacts to VELB. Compensation measures shall be consistent with
USFWS’ Conservation Guidelines for Valley Elderberry Longhorn
Beetle (USFWS 1999). This shall include establishment of a project-
specific VELB Conservation Area or purchase of credits at a USFWS-
approved mitigation bank. If the Partner Agencies establish a project-
specific Conservation Area, the population of VELBs, the general
condition of the Conservation Area, and the condition of the elderberry
and associated native plantings in the Conservation Area shall be
monitored over a period of ten (10) years. Monitoring and reporting
shall be conducted in accordance with the Conservation Guidelines for
VELB (USFWS 1999). A minimum survival rate of at least 60 percent
of the elderberry plants and 60 percent of the associated native plants
shall be maintained throughout the monitoring period.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1d, BIO-3a and BIO-3b, and, as a result, this impact would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO 1d, BIO-3a and BIO-3b, which will ensure that effects on elderberry
bushes are avoided and that indirect impacts are minimized by establishing buffers
areas for bushes adjacent to construction areas.  Preservation of habitat will be



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 32

ensured by providing compensation if any bushes are directly or indirectly affected
during construction. Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact
will be less than significant.

Effects of construction on special-status fish

Impact BIO-4: The project would cross the San Joaquin River using trenchless
construction techniques.  Fish could be affected by pile driving
adjacent to the San Joaquin River, or by a frac-out during construction.
This would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-4a Minimize Pile Driving-related Impacts to Special Status Fish: If
impact pile driving activities occur adjacent to the San Joaquin River
between October 1 and May 31, the Project Proponents shall adhere
to the following restrictions on the number of allowable strikes for a 24
hour period:

Distance from
San Joaquin River

(Meters)

Distance from
San Joaquin River

(Feet)

Maximum Number
of Strikes per 24

hours1

75 246 130
150 492 365
225 738 672
300 984 1035
375 1230 1447
450 1476 1902

>450 >1476 no limit

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 33

 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event
a frac-out; and

 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a
qualified biologist.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-4a and BIO-1d, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-4a and BIO-1d, which would minimize effects of construction. Effects on
fish would be minimized by limiting pile driving adjacent to the river to acceptable levels.
A frac-out prevention plan would be implemented to ensure that fish are protected from

an uncontrolled release of drilling fluids.  Therefore, with the implementation of these
measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Effects on giant garter snake (GGS)

Impact BIO-6: Giant garter snakes could be affected by construction in upland
habitat adjacent to small drainages that would be crossed by pipelines.
This would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-6 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Giant Garter Snake: The following measures
shall be implemented to avoid or minimize impacts to GGS:

 Trenchless construction techniques shall be used to
construct the pipeline crossing in potential aquatic habitat for
GGS (applicable to Alternatives 1 and 2 only);

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor
Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under this
program, workers shall be informed about GGS and habitat, the
species life history, conservation goals, identification of the
snake, and procedures to follow in the event of a possible
sighting;

 Within 24-hours prior to commencement of construction
activities, the site shall be inspected by a qualified biologist who
is approved by the USFWS. The biologist shall provide the
Service with a field report form documenting the monitoring
efforts within 24-hours of commencement of construction
activities. A qualified biologist shall be on-site during all
construction activity within 200 feet of potential habitat for GGS



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 34

(Survey areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). If a
snake is encountered during construction activities, the biologist
shall have the authority to stop construction activities until
appropriate corrective measures have been completed or it is
determined that the snake would not be harmed;

 Erosion control materials including silt curtains, silt fencing,
and erosion control wattles shall be regularly inspected for
entanglement or entrapment of the snake. No erosion control
devices containing plastic netting (including photo- or
biodegradable plastic netting) shall be used;

 Stockpiling of construction materials, portable equipment,
vehicles, and supplies shall be restricted to the designated
construction staging areas which shall be greater than 200 feet
from GGS aquatic habitat;

 Clearing of wetland vegetation, if any, shall be confined to
the minimal area necessary to construct the pipeline or intake;
and

 After completion of construction activities, any temporary fill
and construction debris shall be removed. Disturbed areas shall
be restored to pre-project conditions. Restoration work shall
include replanting native emergent vegetation, where
appropriate.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIO-6, and as a result, this impact would be considered less than significant
after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-6 will ensure construction avoids
suitable habitat for giant garter snake (GGS) to the extent feasible.  Where disturbance
is unavoidable, this measure would ensure that pre-construction surveys and on-site
monitoring is implemented to insure protection of GGS, and habitats would be restored
after construction.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact
will be less than significant.

Impacts to western pond turtle

Impact BIO-8: The project has the potential to affect habitat for western pond
turtle in areas where pipelines cross aquatic habitat. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 35

BIO-8 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Western Pond Turtle: The following measures
shall be implemented to avoid or minimize impacts to western pond
turtle:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques
shall be used where pipelines cross potential aquatic habitat for
western pond turtle;

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor
Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under this
program, workers shall be informed about western pond turtle
and their habitat, conservation goals, identification, and
procedures to follow in the event of a possible sighting; and

 Pre-construction surveys for western pond turtle shall be
conducted by a qualified biologist 14 days before and 24 hours
before the start of construction activities where suitable habitat
exists (Survey are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). If
western pond turtle or their nests are observed during pre-
construction surveys, the following measures shall be
implemented:

o A qualified biologist shall be on site to monitor
construction in suitable habitat. If a western pond turtle is
present within 50 feet of a construction area, no
vegetation clearing or ground disturbing activities shall be
conducted until the turtle leaves the area on its own
volition.

o If western pond turtle nests are identified in the work
area during pre-construction surveys, a 100-foot no-
disturbance buffer shall be established between the nest
and any areas of potential disturbance. Buffers shall be
clearly marked with temporary fencing. Construction shall
not be allowed to commence in the exclusion area until
hatchlings have emerged from the nest, or the nest is
deemed inactive by a qualified biologist.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIO-8, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than significant
after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-8 will ensure construction avoids
suitable habitat for western pond turtle to the extent feasible.  Where disturbance is
unavoidable, this measure would ensure that pre-construction surveys and on-site
monitoring are implemented to insure protection of western pond turtle.  Any nesting
pond turtles would be protected through use of no-disturbance buffers.  Therefore, with
the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 36

Impacts to burrowing owls

Impact BIO-9: The project has the potential to affect burrowing owls during
construction. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-9 Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Burrowing Owl: Prior to
initiating ground-disturbing activities, surveys for burrowing owls shall
be conducted in accordance with protocols established in the Staff
Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2012 or current version). If
ground-disturbing activities are delayed or suspended for more than 30
days after the pre-construction survey, the site shall be resurveyed. If
burrowing owls are detected, disturbance to burrows shall be avoided
during the nesting season (February 1 through August 31).  Buffers
shall be established around occupied burrows in accordance with
guidance provided in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation,
and at the discretion of a qualified wildlife biologist. Buffers around
occupied burrows shall be a minimum of 656 feet (200 meters) during
the breeding season, and 160 feet (100 meters) during the non-
breeding season. Buffer distances shall be subject to the approval of
CDFW.
If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, passive owl relocation
techniques may be implemented outside of the nesting season
(February 1 through August 31). Owls would be excluded from burrows
within 160 feet of construction by installing one-way doors in burrow
entrances. The work area shall be monitored daily for 1 week to
confirm owl departure from burrows prior to any ground-disturbing
activities. Where possible burrows shall be excavated using hand tools
and refilled to prevent reoccupation. Sections of flexible plastic pipe
shall be inserted into the tunnels during excavation to maintain an
escape route for any animals inside the burrow.
If occupied burrows are relocated, the Partners Agencies shall
enhance or create burrows in adjacent habitat at a 1:1 ratio (burrows
destroyed to burrows enhanced or created) one week prior to
implementation of passive relocation techniques. If burrowing owl
habitat enhancement or creation takes place, the Partners Agencies
shall develop and implement a monitoring and management plan to
assess the effectiveness of the mitigation. The plan shall be subject to
the approval of CDFW.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 37

in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIO-9, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than significant
after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-9 will ensure construction avoids
burrowing owls to the extent feasible.  Where disturbance is unavoidable, this measure
would ensure that pre-construction surveys and on-site monitoring is implemented to
insure protection of burrowing owls.  Any nesting owls would be protected through use
of no-disturbance buffers, or, if necessary, passive relocation techniques combined with
creating or enhancement of burrows in adjacent areas.  Therefore, with the
implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impacts to tricolored blackbird

Impact BIO-10: The project has the potential to affect tricolored blackbirds during
construction. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-10 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting
Colonies: The following measures shall be implemented to avoid or
minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques
shall be used in areas that support emergent vegetation;

 During the breeding season (February 1 through August 31),
pre-construction surveys for tricolored blackbird shall be
conducted in suitable nesting habitat by a qualified biologist no
more than 15 days prior to scheduled work. Suitable nesting
habitat includes any of the following: (a) dense vegetation near
open water; (b) emergent marsh vegetation, especially cattails
and bulrush; (c) thickets of willow, blackberry, wild rose, or
thistles; or (d) silage and other grain fields such as sorghum;
and

 If tricolored blackbird breeding is detected, a 500 foot no-
disturbance buffer shall be established around the breeding
site. The buffer shall be maintained until a qualified biologist has
determined that young have fledged and are no longer reliant
upon the nest or parental care for survival.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 38

Measure BIO-10, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-10 will ensure construction
avoids habitat for tricolored blackbird to the extent feasible.  Where disturbance is
unavoidable, this measure would ensure that pre-construction surveys and on-site
monitoring are implemented to insure protection of tricolored blackbird.  Any nesting
tricolored blackbird would be protected through use of no-disturbance buffers.
Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than
significant.

Impacts to nesting raptors

Impact BIO-12: The project has the potential to affect nesting raptors during
construction. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-12 Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Raptors including
Special-status species:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between
February 1 and September 15, a nesting raptor survey, with a
focus on Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed kite, shall be
conducted in accordance with Recommended Timing and
Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Survey's in
California's Central Valley (Swainson’s Hawk Technical
Advisory Committee 2000, or current CDFW guidance). Surveys
shall cover a minimum of a 0.5-mile radius around potentially
suitable nesting habitat for Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed
kite (Survey areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP).
Agricultural lands within 1,000 feet of open-cut construction
areas shall be surveyed for northern harrier nests.

 If nesting raptors are detected, a no-disturbance buffer shall
be established around the nest. Buffers shall be established by
a qualified biologist, with consultation with the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, as appropriate. No
construction activities shall be initiated within the buffer until
fledglings are fully mobile and no longer reliant upon the nest or
parental care for survival.  Construction must either be started
before nests are established, or if nesting birds are already
present, construction within the buffer zone would have to be
delayed until nesting is done for the season.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 39

 If an active Swainson’s hawk or white-tailed kite nest is
located within a 0.5-mile radius of an active work area, a
biologist shall be on site daily to monitor the nest. The biologist
shall monitor for behavioral changes that would suggest the
birds are stressed by construction activity or the nest may be
abandoned. Such behaviors may include excessive
vocalization, a startled response coincident with a loud noise or
changes in the viewshed, or prolonged absence from the nest
by adults. If the biologists determines that nest success may be
adversely impacted by construction, then construction shall be
discontinued within 0.5 mile of the nest.

 Trees that would need to be removed for construction would
be surveyed to determine if they are suitable for raptor nesting.

 If potential raptor nesting trees are to be removed during
construction activities, removal shall take place outside of
Swainson’s hawk nesting season. Suitable nest trees for raptors
shall be replaced at a ratio of 3:1 with appropriate species [e.g.,
valley oak (Quercus lobata), coast live oak (Q. agrifolia).,
Fremont cottonwood (Populus fremontii)]. The trees shall be
planted within 5 miles of the removal location, in areas
appropriate for raptor nesting, and on land owned or managed
by one of the Partner Agencies. If replacement planting is
implemented, monitoring shall be conducted annually for 5
years to assess the mitigation’s effectiveness. The performance
standard for the mitigation shall be 65% survival of all
replacement plantings.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIO-12, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-12 will ensure that pre-
construction surveys and on-site monitoring are implemented to insure protection of
nesting raptors.  Any nesting raptors will be protected through use of appropriate no-
disturbance buffers and the project would include compensation for any impacts to
nesting habitat.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will
be less than significant.

Impacts to special-status passerine species and other birds protected under the
MBTA

Impact BIO-13: The project has the potential to other nesting birds during
construction, including special status passerines including Least Bell’s



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 40

vireo (LBV) and other birds that are protected under the Migratory Bird
Treaty Act. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-13 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-status passerine species and
other Bird Protected under the MBTA:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between
February 1 and September 15, a survey for nesting birds shall
be conducted within a 500-ft radius of the construction area. If
nests are detected, buffers around nests shall be established.
No-disturbance buffers around special-status passerine nests
shall be 500 feet and 250 feet for non-listed birds protected
under the MBTA and Fish and Game Code sections 3503 and
3513, unless a qualified CDFW biologist determines that
smaller buffers shall be sufficient to minimize impacts to nesting
birds. Factors to be considered for determining buffer size shall
include: the presence of natural buffers provided by vegetation
or topography; nest height; locations of foraging territory; and
baseline levels of noise and human activity. Buffers shall be
maintained until a qualified biologist has determined that young
have fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental
care for survival.

 Prior to commencing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin River
the Project Partners shall conduct surveys for LBV in
accordance with USFWS’ Least Bell’s Vireo Survey Guidelines
(USFWS 2011a). If LBV are detected during the surveys, the
Project Partners shall consult with the USFWS to determine
appropriate avoidance measures. The performance standard for
avoidance shall be no potential impacts to an established LBV
nest. This shall be accomplished by establishing a no-
disturbance buffer around the active nest. The no-disturbance
buffer shall be a minimum of 500 feet, but may be larger
depending on site specific conditions and consultation with
USFWS.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIO-13, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than
significant after mitigation.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 41

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-13 will ensure that pre-
construction surveys and on-site monitoring are implemented to insure protection of
nesting birds.  Any nesting birds will be protected through use of appropriate no-
disturbance buffers.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact
will be less than significant.

Impacts to San Joaquin kit fox

Impact BIO-14: Although San Joaquin kit fox are unlikely to occur in the project
area, there presence cannot be ruled out, so the project has the
potential to affect San Joaquin kit fox during construction. This would
be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-14a Avoid and Minimize Impacts to San Joaquin kit fox:
 Project-related activities will avoid affecting the alkali

scrub/flat habitat in the action area. Avoidance is defined as no
direct or indirect effects to habitat.

 A qualified biologist will conduct preconstruction surveys no
less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the
commencement of activities to identify potential dens more than
5 inches in diameter within 200 feet of ground disturbing
activities.  The Project Partners will implement USFWS’ (2011b)
Standardized Recommendations for Protection of San Joaquin
Kit Fox Prior to or During Ground Disturbance. The Project
Partners will notify USFWS in writing of the results of the
preconstruction survey within 30 days after these activities are
completed.

 If potential dens are located within the proposed work area
and cannot be avoided during construction activities, a USFWS-
approved biologist will determine if the dens are occupied. If
occupied dens are present within the proposed work, their
disturbance will be avoided. Exclusion zones will be
implemented following the most current USFWS procedures
(currently USFWS 2011b).  The Project Partners will notify
USFWS immediately if a natal or pupping den is found in the
survey area, and will present the results of pre-activity den
searches within 5 days after these activities are completed and
before the start of construction activities in the area.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 42

Measure BIO-14, and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-14 will ensure that kit fox habitat
is avoided to the extent feasible and will ensure that pre-construction surveys and on-
site monitoring are implemented to insure protection of kit fox dens.  Any dens will be
protected through use of appropriate no-disturbance buffers.  Therefore, with the
implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impacts to riparian habitat and other sensitive natural communities

Impact BIO-15: Construction would minimize impacts through use of trenchless
construction, but riparian areas and other sensitive natural
communities could be affected by sedimentation or alteration of
drainage patterns. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

BIO-16a Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Federally Protected Wetlands: To the
extent feasible, project-related activities shall avoid federally protected
wetlands. To the extent feasible, the proposed project shall minimize
potential impacts to federally protected wetlands by utilizing trenchless
construction techniques. A SWPPP shall be implemented to reduce
the potential for sediments and contaminants to enter wetlands and
waters. After construction, surface topography and drainage shall be
restored to pre-construction conditions. Where appropriate,
revegetation shall be implemented with site-adapted native species.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 43

BIO-16b Obtain Regulatory Permits for Work Activities Taking Place in
Wetlands and Waters of the United States and the State: Work
within areas defined as waters of the U.S. that includes placement of
fill will require a CWA Section 404 permit and Section 401 Water
Quality Certification. All work proposed in jurisdictional waters of the
U.S. shall be authorized under these permits, and the work shall
comply with the general and regional conditions of the permits. In
areas where disturbance to jurisdictional waters or wetlands occurs,
the Partner Agencies shall implement mitigation consistent with the
terms of a CWA Nationwide Permit and/or the Final Rule on
Compensatory Mitigation for Losses of Aquatic Resources (73 C.F.R.
19594). Compensatory mitigation may include creation, re-
establishment, or enhancement of wetlands in the Project Area or at
an off-site location. Compensatory mitigation may also include
purchase of credits at an approved mitigation bank or contribution to
an approved in-lieu fee program.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1d, BIO-16a and BIO-16b, and, as a result, this impact would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1d, BIO-16a and BIO-16b will
ensure that riparian habitats and other sensitive natural communities are avoided to the
extent feasible and will ensure that sensitive areas are protected from runoff from
construction areas.  Restoration of any affected areas, combined with compensatory
mitigation, if needed, would ensure that there is no loss of sensitive habitat.  Therefore,
with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impacts to federally protected wetlands

Impact BIO-16: Construction would minimize impacts through use of trenchless
construction, but some jurisdictional areas may be crossed by
pipelines and could be affected by sedimentation or alteration of
drainage patterns. This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 44

measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

BIO-16a Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Federally Protected Wetlands: To the
extent feasible, project-related activities shall avoid federally protected
wetlands. To the extent feasible, the proposed project shall minimize
potential impacts to federally protected wetlands by utilizing trenchless
construction techniques. A SWPPP shall be implemented to reduce
the potential for sediments and contaminants to enter wetlands and
waters. After construction, surface topography and drainage shall be
restored to pre-construction conditions. Where appropriate,
revegetation shall be implemented with site-adapted native species.

BIO-16b Obtain Regulatory Permits for Work Activities Taking Place in
Wetlands and Waters of the United States and the State: Work
within areas defined as waters of the U.S. that includes placement of
fill will require a CWA Section 404 permit and Section 401 Water
Quality Certification. All work proposed in jurisdictional waters of the
U.S. shall be authorized under these permits, and the work shall
comply with the general and regional conditions of the permits. In
areas where disturbance to jurisdictional waters or wetlands occurs,
the Partner Agencies shall implement mitigation consistent with the
terms of a CWA Nationwide Permit and/or the Final Rule on
Compensatory Mitigation for Losses of Aquatic Resources (73 C.F.R.
19594). Compensatory mitigation may include creation, re-
establishment, or enhancement of wetlands in the Project Area or at
an off-site location. Compensatory mitigation may also include
purchase of credits at an approved mitigation bank or contribution to
an approved in-lieu fee program.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1d, BIO-16a and BIO-16b, and, as a result, this impact would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 45

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1d, BIO-16a and BIO-16b will
ensure that federally protected wetlands are avoided to the extent feasible and will
ensure that sensitive areas are protected from runoff from construction areas.
Restoration of any affected areas, combined with compensatory mitigation, if needed,
would ensure that there is no loss of wetlands.  Therefore, with the implementation of
these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impacts to movement of fish and wildlife and use of breeding areas

Impact BIO-17: Construction would minimize impacts through use of trenchless
construction, but some wildlife breeding occurs in agricultural lands,
natural drainages and other wetlands, and trees that provide nesting
habitat could be affected during construction. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-6 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Giant Garter Snake: The following measures
shall be implemented to avoid or minimize impacts to GGS:

 Trenchless construction techniques shall be used to
construct the pipeline crossing in potential aquatic habitat for
GGS (applicable to Alternatives 1 and 2 only);

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor
Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under this
program, workers shall be informed about GGS and habitat, the
species life history, conservation goals, identification of the
snake, and procedures to follow in the event of a possible
sighting;

 Within 24-hours prior to commencement of construction
activities, the site shall be inspected by a qualified biologist who
is approved by the USFWS. The biologist shall provide the
Service with a field report form documenting the monitoring
efforts within 24-hours of commencement of construction
activities. A qualified biologist shall be on-site during all
construction activity within 200 feet of potential habitat for GGS
(Survey areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). If a
snake is encountered during construction activities, the biologist
shall have the authority to stop construction activities until
appropriate corrective measures have been completed or it is
determined that the snake would not be harmed;

 Erosion control materials including silt curtains, silt fencing,
and erosion control wattles shall be regularly inspected for
entanglement or entrapment of the snake. No erosion control



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 46

devices containing plastic netting (including photo- or
biodegradable plastic netting) shall be used;

 Stockpiling of construction materials, portable equipment,
vehicles, and supplies shall be restricted to the designated
construction staging areas which shall be greater than 200 feet
from GGS aquatic habitat;

 Clearing of wetland vegetation, if any, shall be confined to
the minimal area necessary to construct the pipeline or intake;
and

 After completion of construction activities, any temporary fill
and construction debris shall be removed. Disturbed areas shall
be restored to pre-project conditions. Restoration work shall
include replanting native emergent vegetation, where
appropriate.

BIO-8 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Western Pond Turtle: The following measures
shall be implemented to avoid or minimize impacts to western pond
turtle:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques
shall be used where pipelines cross potential aquatic habitat for
western pond turtle;

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor
Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under this
program, workers shall be informed about western pond turtle
and their habitat, conservation goals, identification, and
procedures to follow in the event of a possible sighting; and

 Pre-construction surveys for western pond turtle shall be
conducted by a qualified biologist 14 days before and 24 hours
before the start of construction activities where suitable habitat
exists (Survey are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). If
western pond turtle or their nests are observed during pre-
construction surveys, the following measures shall be
implemented:

o A qualified biologist shall be on site to monitor
construction in suitable habitat. If a western pond turtle is
present within 50 feet of a construction area, no
vegetation clearing or ground disturbing activities shall be
conducted until the turtle leaves the area on its own
volition.

o If western pond turtle nests are identified in the work
area during pre-construction surveys, a 100-foot no-
disturbance buffer shall be established between the nest
and any areas of potential disturbance. Buffers shall be
clearly marked with temporary fencing. Construction shall



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 47

not be allowed to commence in the exclusion area until
hatchlings have emerged from the nest, or the nest is
deemed inactive by a qualified biologist.

BIO-9 Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Burrowing Owl: Prior to
initiating ground-disturbing activities, surveys for burrowing owls shall
be conducted in accordance with protocols established in the Staff
Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2012 or current version). If
ground-disturbing activities are delayed or suspended for more than 30
days after the pre-construction survey, the site shall be resurveyed. If
burrowing owls are detected, disturbance to burrows shall be avoided
during the nesting season (February 1 through August 31).  Buffers
shall be established around occupied burrows in accordance with
guidance provided in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl Mitigation,
and at the discretion of a qualified wildlife biologist. Buffers around
occupied burrows shall be a minimum of 656 feet (200 meters) during
the breeding season, and 160 feet (100 meters) during the non-
breeding season. Buffer distances shall be subject to the approval of
CDFW.
If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, passive owl relocation
techniques may be implemented outside of the nesting season
(February 1 through August 31). Owls would be excluded from burrows
within 160 feet of construction by installing one-way doors in burrow
entrances. The work area shall be monitored daily for 1 week to
confirm owl departure from burrows prior to any ground-disturbing
activities. Where possible burrows shall be excavated using hand tools
and refilled to prevent reoccupation. Sections of flexible plastic pipe
shall be inserted into the tunnels during excavation to maintain an
escape route for any animals inside the burrow.
If occupied burrows are relocated, the Partners Agencies shall
enhance or create burrows in adjacent habitat at a 1:1 ratio (burrows
destroyed to burrows enhanced or created) one week prior to
implementation of passive relocation techniques. If burrowing owl
habitat enhancement or creation takes place, the Partners Agencies
shall develop and implement a monitoring and management plan to
assess the effectiveness of the mitigation. The plan shall be subject to
the approval of CDFW.

BIO-10 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting
Colonies: The following measures shall be implemented to avoid or
minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques
shall be used in areas that support emergent vegetation;



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 48

 During the breeding season (February 1 through August 31),
pre-construction surveys for tricolored blackbird shall be
conducted in suitable nesting habitat by a qualified biologist no
more than 15 days prior to scheduled work. Suitable nesting
habitat includes any of the following: (a) dense vegetation near
open water; (b) emergent marsh vegetation, especially cattails
and bulrush; (c) thickets of willow, blackberry, wild rose, or
thistles; or (d) silage and other grain fields such as sorghum;
and

 If tricolored blackbird breeding is detected, a 500 foot no-
disturbance buffer shall be established around the breeding
site. The buffer shall be maintained until a qualified biologist has
determined that young have fledged and are no longer reliant
upon the nest or parental care for survival.

BIO-12 Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Raptors including
Special-status species:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between
February 1 and September 15, a nesting raptor survey, with a
focus on Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed kite, shall be
conducted in accordance with Recommended Timing and
Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Survey's in
California's Central Valley (Swainson’s Hawk Technical
Advisory Committee 2000, or current CDFW guidance). Surveys
shall cover a minimum of a 0.5-mile radius around potentially
suitable nesting habitat for Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed
kite (Survey areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP).
Agricultural lands within 1,000 feet of open-cut construction
areas shall be surveyed for northern harrier nests.

 If nesting raptors are detected, a no-disturbance buffer shall
be established around the nest. Buffers shall be established by
a qualified biologist, with consultation with the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife, as appropriate. No
construction activities shall be initiated within the buffer until
fledglings are fully mobile and no longer reliant upon the nest or
parental care for survival.  Construction must either be started
before nests are established, or if nesting birds are already
present, construction within the buffer zone would have to be
delayed until nesting is done for the season.

 If an active Swainson’s hawk or white-tailed kite nest is
located within a 0.5-mile radius of an active work area, a
biologist shall be on site daily to monitor the nest. The biologist
shall monitor for behavioral changes that would suggest the
birds are stressed by construction activity or the nest may be



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 49

abandoned. Such behaviors may include excessive
vocalization, a startled response coincident with a loud noise or
changes in the viewshed, or prolonged absence from the nest
by adults. If the biologists determines that nest success may be
adversely impacted by construction, then construction shall be
discontinued within 0.5 mile of the nest.

 Trees that would need to be removed for construction would
be surveyed to determine if they are suitable for raptor nesting.

 If potential raptor nesting trees are to be removed during
construction activities, removal shall take place outside of
Swainson’s hawk nesting season. Suitable nest trees for raptors
shall be replaced at a ratio of 3:1 with appropriate species [e.g.,
valley oak (Quercus lobata), coast live oak (Q. agrifolia).,
Fremont cottonwood (Populus fremontii)]. The trees shall be
planted within 5 miles of the removal location, in areas
appropriate for raptor nesting, and on land owned or managed
by one of the Partner Agencies. If replacement planting is
implemented, monitoring shall be conducted annually for 5
years to assess the mitigation’s effectiveness. The performance
standard for the mitigation shall be 65% survival of all
replacement plantings.

BIO-13 Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-status passerine species and
other Bird Protected under the MBTA:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between
February 1 and September 15, a survey for nesting birds shall
be conducted within a 500-ft radius of the construction area. If
nests are detected, buffers around nests shall be established.
No-disturbance buffers around special-status passerine nests
shall be 500 feet and 250 feet for non-listed birds protected
under the MBTA and Fish and Game Code sections 3503 and
3513, unless a qualified CDFW biologist determines that
smaller buffers shall be sufficient to minimize impacts to nesting
birds. Factors to be considered for determining buffer size shall
include: the presence of natural buffers provided by vegetation
or topography; nest height; locations of foraging territory; and
baseline levels of noise and human activity. Buffers shall be
maintained until a qualified biologist has determined that young
have fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental
care for survival.

 Prior to commencing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin River
the Project Partners shall conduct surveys for LBV in
accordance with USFWS’ Least Bell’s Vireo Survey Guidelines
(USFWS 2011a). If LBV are detected during the surveys, the



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 50

Project Partners shall consult with the USFWS to determine
appropriate avoidance measures. The performance standard for
avoidance shall be no potential impacts to an established LBV
nest. This shall be accomplished by establishing a no-
disturbance buffer around the active nest. The no-disturbance
buffer shall be a minimum of 500 feet, but may be larger
depending on site specific conditions and consultation with
USFWS.

TR-2 Install Temporary Trench Plates Over Open Trenches: During construction of
the pipeline, temporary trench plates will be installed over open
trenches at the end of each work day.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-6, BIO-8, BIO-9, BIO-10, BIO-12, BIO-13, and, TR-2 as a result, this
impact would be considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-6, BIO-8, BIO-9, BIO-10, BIO-
12, BIO-13, and, TR-2 will ensure that preconstruction surveys are conducted and
buffer zones implemented as needed to ensure that breeding areas are not disrupted,
trenches are covered so that effects on wildlife movement are minimized, and trees are
replanted as needed.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the
impact will be less than significant.

Conflict with local ordinances or policies protecting biological resources

Impact BIO-18: Construction would minimize impacts through use of trenchless
construction and avoidance of sensitive habitat, but sensitive
resources could be affected by sedimentation or alteration of drainage
patterns. This would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 51

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

BIO-2a Avoid Impacts to Vernal Pool Branchiopods and their Habitat: To the
extent feasible, the project-related activities shall avoid impacts to
habitat with the potential to support Conservancy fairy shrimp,
longhorn fairy shrimp, vernal pool fairy shrimp, and vernal pool tadpole
shrimp, including alkali pools and swales. Avoidance shall be defined
as no direct or indirect effects to suitable habitat. This shall be
accomplished by avoiding construction within the microwatershed of
suitable habitat for vernal pool branchiopods.

BIO-16a Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Federally Protected Wetlands: To the
extent feasible, project-related activities shall avoid federally protected
wetlands. To the extent feasible, the proposed project shall minimize
potential impacts to federally protected wetlands by utilizing trenchless
construction techniques. A SWPPP shall be implemented to reduce
the potential for sediments and contaminants to enter wetlands and
waters. After construction, surface topography and drainage shall be
restored to pre-construction conditions. Where appropriate,
revegetation shall be implemented with site-adapted native species.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1d, BIO-2a and BIO-16a, and, as a result, this impact would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measures BIO-1d, BIO-2a and BIO-16a will
ensure that federally protected wetlands, including vernal pools, are avoided to the
extent feasible and will ensure that sensitive areas are protected from runoff from
construction areas.  Restoration of any affected areas, combined with compensatory
mitigation, if needed, would ensure that there is no loss of sensitive habitats.
Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than
significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 52

Cumulative impacts to fish and their habitat in the San Joaquin River

Impact BIO-CUM-2: The reduction in flows due to the NVRRWP would be
minimal, but because the San Joaquin River has already been
modified and degraded the small incremental contribution to an
already cumulatively substantial impact is considered a potentially
significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

BIOCUM-1 Assistance with Salmonid Recovery Plan Actions: The NVRRWP
Project Partners would work with Reclamation and with resource
agencies, including NMFS, USFWS, and CDFW to assist in
implementation the following recovery actions from the Recovery Plan
for Central Valley Chinook Salmon and Steelhead.

 Implement projects that improve wastewater treatment in the
San Joaquin River watershed.  The NVRRWP as designed
would reduce the input of nutrients and salinity to the San
Joaquin River, and as such the proposed project already
addresses this recovery action.

 Develop and implement a spawning gravel augmentation
plan in the San Joaquin River.  The NVRRWP Project Partners
would make a cash contribution to an existing restoration
program or organization working to augment spawning gravels.
The funding could assist in programs being implemented as
part of Reclamation’s San Joaquin River Restoration Program,
the USFWS Anadromous Fish Restoration Program, or other
relevant restoration program.

Findings:  Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure BIOCUM-1 and, as a result, this impact would be considered less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIOCUM-1 will address existing
degraded conditions on the San Joaquin River by reducing the input of nutrients and
salinity to the river, and contributing to improvements of spawning gravels on the river.
Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than
significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 53

3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES
Impact CUL-1: No archeological resources as defined under CEQA have been

identified in the project area, and, there is no evidence suggesting a
significant potential for human remains to be buried in the project area.
However, excavation activities associated with project construction
could disturb previously unidentified archaeological resources during
project construction. This would be considered a potentially
significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

CUL-1a Discovery of previously unknown archaeological resources during
construction: The following measures shall be implemented in the
event of unexpected discovery of archaeological resources:

 The project proponent shall note on any construction plans
that require ground disturbing excavation that there is a
potential for exposing buried cultural resources.

 The Partner Agencies shall retain a Professional
Archaeologist to provide a pre-construction briefing to
supervisory personnel of any excavation contractor to alert them
to the possibility of exposing significant prehistoric
archaeological resources within the study area.  The briefing
shall discuss any archaeological objects that could be exposed,
the need to stop excavation at the discovery, and the
procedures to follow regarding discovery protection and
notification of the project proponent and archaeological team.

 The project proponent shall retain a Professional
Archaeologist on an “on-call” basis during ground disturbing
construction for the project to review, identify and evaluate
cultural resources that may be inadvertently exposed during
construction.  The archaeologist shall review and evaluate any
discoveries to determine if they are historical resource(s) and/or
unique archaeological resources under CEQA.

 If cultural resources are encountered during the project,
construction personnel shall avoid altering these materials and
their context until a Professional Archaeologist has evaluated
the situation. Project personnel shall not collect or retain cultural
resources. Prehistoric resources include, but are not limited to,
chert or obsidian flakes, projectile points, mortars, and pestles;
and dark, friable soil containing shell and bone, dietary debris,
heat-affected rock, or human burials. Historical resources
include stone or adobe foundations or walls, structures and
remains with square nails, and refuse deposits, often in old
wells and privies.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 54

 If the Professional Archaeologist determines that any
cultural resources exposed during construction constitute a
historical resource and/or unique archaeological resource,
he/she shall notify the Partner Agencies and other appropriate
parties of the evaluation and recommended measures to
mitigate effects to a less-than significant impact.  Mitigation
measures may include avoidance, preservation in-place,
recordation, additional archaeological testing and data recovery,
among other options.  Treatment of any significant cultural
resources shall be undertaken with the approval of the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation and other lead agencies.

 Any identified cultural resources shall be recorded on forms
DPR 422 (archaeological sites) and/or DPR 523 (historic
properties) or similar forms by a Professional Archaeologist.

CUL-1b Discovery of human burials during construction: The treatment of
human remains and of associated or unassociated funerary objects
discovered during any soil-disturbing activity within the project shall
comply with applicable State laws.  This shall include immediate
notification of the Stanislaus County Coroner (Stanislaus County
Sherriff's Office).
In the event of the coroner's determination that the human remains are
Native American, notification of the Native American Heritage
Commission (NAHC) is required. The NAHC shall be notified by phone
within 24 hours of the discovery and shall be afforded the opportunity
to appoint a Most Likely Descendant (MLD) (PRC Section 5097.98).
The archaeological consultant, project sponsor, and MLD shall make
all reasonable efforts to develop an agreement for the treatment, with
appropriate dignity, of human remains and associated or unassociated
funerary objects (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5(d)).  The
agreement should take into consideration the appropriate excavation,
removal, recordation, analysis, custodianship, curation, and final
disposition of the human remains and associated or unassociated
funerary objects.  California Public Resources Code allows 48 hours to
reach agreement on these matters.  If the MLD and the other parties
do not agree on the reburial method, the project will follow PRC
Section 5097.98(b) which states that "the landowner or his or her
authorized representative shall reinter the human remains and items
associated with Native American burials with appropriate dignity on the
property in a location not subject to further subsurface disturbance."

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures CUL-1a and CUL-1b, which will reduce the potential for harm to cultural
resources to less than significant after mitigation.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 55

Rationale: Mitigation measures CUL-1a and CUL-1b will ensure that resources
discovered during construction are addressed and mitigated to avoid accidental
damage, in compliance with CEQA requirements.  Therefore, with the implementation
of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impact CUL-2: The project has been designed to avoid disturbance of known
historical resources in the project area. However, excavation activities
associated with project construction could disturb previously
unidentified historical resources during project construction. This would
be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

CUL-1a Discovery of previously unknown archaeological resources during
construction: The following measures shall be implemented in the
event of unexpected discovery of archaeological resources:

 The project proponent shall note on any construction plans
that require ground disturbing excavation that there is a
potential for exposing buried cultural resources.

 The Partner Agencies shall retain a Professional
Archaeologist to provide a pre-construction briefing to
supervisory personnel of any excavation contractor to alert them
to the possibility of exposing significant prehistoric
archaeological resources within the study area.  The briefing
shall discuss any archaeological objects that could be exposed,
the need to stop excavation at the discovery, and the
procedures to follow regarding discovery protection and
notification of the project proponent and archaeological team.

 The project proponent shall retain a Professional
Archaeologist on an “on-call” basis during ground disturbing
construction for the project to review, identify and evaluate
cultural resources that may be inadvertently exposed during
construction.  The archaeologist shall review and evaluate any
discoveries to determine if they are historical resource(s) and/or
unique archaeological resources under CEQA.

 If cultural resources are encountered during the project,
construction personnel shall avoid altering these materials and
their context until a Professional Archaeologist has evaluated
the situation. Project personnel shall not collect or retain cultural
resources. Prehistoric resources include, but are not limited to,
chert or obsidian flakes, projectile points, mortars, and pestles;
and dark, friable soil containing shell and bone, dietary debris,
heat-affected rock, or human burials. Historical resources
include stone or adobe foundations or walls, structures and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 56

remains with square nails, and refuse deposits, often in old
wells and privies.

 If the Professional Archaeologist determines that any
cultural resources exposed during construction constitute a
historical resource and/or unique archaeological resource,
he/she shall notify the Partner Agencies and other appropriate
parties of the evaluation and recommended measures to
mitigate effects to a less-than significant impact.  Mitigation
measures may include avoidance, preservation in-place,
recordation, additional archaeological testing and data recovery,
among other options.  Treatment of any significant cultural
resources shall be undertaken with the approval of the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation and other lead agencies.

 Any identified cultural resources shall be recorded on forms
DPR 422 (archaeological sites) and/or DPR 523 (historic
properties) or similar forms by a Professional Archaeologist.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure CUL-1a, which will reduce the potential for harm to cultural resources to less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation measure CUL-1a will ensure that historic resources discovered
during construction are addressed and mitigated to avoid accidental damage, in
compliance with CEQA requirements.  Therefore, with the implementation of these
measures, the impact will be less than significant.

Impact CUL-3: There is no evidence suggesting a significant potential for fossils to
occur in the project area. However, excavation activities associated
with project construction could disturb previously unidentified
paleontological resources during project construction. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

CUL-3Discovery of paleontological resources during construction: If
paleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving activities,
the construction crew would immediately cease work near the find.  In
accordance with Society of Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines
(Society of Vertebrate Paleontology 2010), a qualified paleontologist
would assess the nature and importance of the find and recommend
appropriate salvage, treatment, and future monitoring and mitigation.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 57

in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure CUL-3, which will reduce the potential for harm to paleontological resources to
less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation measure CUL-3 will ensure that paleontological resources
discovered during construction are addressed and mitigated to avoid accidental
damage, in compliance with CEQA requirements.  Therefore, with the implementation
of these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

3.6 ENERGY RESOURCES
Impact ENE-1: Construction of the project requires use of fuels and excessive

idling and other inefficient site operations could result in inefficient use
of energy.  This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures

AIR-1 Reduce NOx Emissions:  NOx emissions associated with construction activities
shall be reduced to 10 tons per year through on-site equipment and
hauling vehicle Mitigation Measure to the extent feasible. All vehicles
and equipment used during construction shall be maintained and
properly tuned in accordance with the manufacturer’s specifications to
perform at US EPA certification levels and to perform at verified
standards applicable to retrofit technologies.  All equipment shall be
checked by a certified mechanic and determined to be running in
proper condition prior to operation.  Idling times shall be minimized
either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the
maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California
airborne toxics control measure CCR Title 13 Section 2485).
Emissions reduction methods may be chosen from any combination of
the following measures:

 Minimize the use and trips of construction equipment and
trucks by consolidating trips and loads to the extent feasible

 Minimize unnecessary idling by shutting off equipment and
trucks when not in use to the extent feasible and comply with
CARB idling regulations.

 Conduct periodic unscheduled inspections to ensure
equipment is maintained properly and in accordance with
manufacturer’s recommendations and excessive idling is not
occurring.

 Prepare inventory of all equipment prior to construction
consistent with SJVAPCD Indirect Source Review Rule.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 58

 Develop a construction traffic and parking management plan
that minimizes traffic interference and maintains traffic flow.

The contractor will be encouraged to implement the following
measures to the extent feasible before implementation of off-site
Mitigation Measure and identify why the measures are infeasible if not
implemented in particular due to economic infeasibility:

 Use alternative fueled vehicles.
 Use newer tier engines such as US EPA Tier 4 exhaust

emissions standards for heavy-duty nonroad compression
ignition engines.

 Use of newer on-highway vehicles that meet the US EPA
exhaust emissions standards for model year 2010 and newer
heavy-duty on-highway compression ignition engines

 Use phased material hauling trips
 Use after-market pollution control devices to reduce

emissions
 Lengthen the construction schedule to reduce the annual

intensity of construction activities
If all feasible on-site measures have been implemented and annual
emissions are anticipated to still be above 10 tons per year for NOx,
then the project proponent shall enter into a Voluntary Emissions
Reduction Agreement (VERA) with SJVAPCD. The VERA would
provide pound-for-pound mitigation of air emissions increases down to
a net zero emissions per year as required under general conformity
through a process that develops, funds, and implements emission
reduction projects. SJVAPCD would serving as role of administrator of
the emissions reduction projects and verifier of the successful
mitigation effort.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the project
which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified in the
Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures AIR-1, which will serve to ensure efficient use of fuels thus reducing energy
impacts to less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure AIR-1 requires that engines be properly tuned and that
restrictions on idling are enforced, thus reducing the impact to less than significant.

3.8 GEOLOGY AND SOILS
Impact GEO-1: The project would be subject to damage from groundshaking and

liquefaction.  This would be considered a potentially significant
impact.

Mitigation Measures



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 59

GEO-1 Perform Design-Level Geotechnical Evaluations for Seismic
Hazards: During the design phase for the proposed project, perform
site-specific, design-level geotechnical evaluations to identify potential
secondary ground failure hazards (i.e., seismically-induced settlement)
associated with the expected level of seismic ground shaking.  A
geotechnical memorandum shall be prepared to detail the findings of
the evaluations.
The geotechnical analysis will provide recommendations to mitigate
those hazards in the final design and, if necessary, during
construction.  The design-level geotechnical evaluations, based on the
site conditions, location, and professional opinion of the geotechnical
engineer, may include subsurface drilling, soil testing, and analysis of
site seismic response to determine appropriate feasible measures to
be incorporated into the project design.  The performance standard to
be used in the geotechnical evaluations will be minimization of the
hazards associated with liquefaction and seismic groundshaking.  The
geotechnical engineer will review the seismic design criteria of facilities
to ensure that facilities are designed to withstand the highest expected
peak acceleration, set forth by the California Building Code for each
site, and ensure that secondary ground failures, such as liquefaction,
are minimized.  Recommendations resulting from findings of the
geotechnical study will be incorporated into the design and
construction of proposed facilities.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure GEO-1, which will reduce the risks associated with groundshaking and
liquefaction to less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure GEO-1will ensure that facilities are designed to
withstand groundshaking and that risk of secondary failures such as liquefaction are
minimized.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be
less than significant.
Impact GEO-2: The project would be subject to damage from expansive soils.  This

would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

GEO-2 Perform Design-Level Geotechnical Evaluations for Soil Expansion:
During the design phase for all components of the project, a design-
level geotechnical evaluation to determine the presence and
characteristics of potentially compressible and expansive soils, the



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 60

engineering properties of the foundation material, and the depth and
thickness of soil layers will be completed.  The results of the
investigations will include measures that would reduce soil expansion
to a less-than-significant level.  Feasible mitigation measures could
include removal and replacement of soil, deep foundations, or deep
mixing of compressible or expansive soils with stabilizing agents.  All
mitigation measures included in the geotechnical evaluation will be
incorporated into the project design specifications.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure GEO-2, which will reduce the risks associated with expansive soils to less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure GEO-2 will result in replacing expansive soils with non-
expansive materials, or having them treated so as to become non-expansive and, if
necessary, other engineering practices for mitigation of expansive soil conditions shall
be implemented.  Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will
be less than significant.

3.2.10 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
Hazardous materials use during construction

Impact HAZ-1: Construction requires use of hazardous materials including fuel,
paints, solvents and glues.  Accidental release of hazardous materials
would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

HAZ-1a Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Prevention Control Plan:
Prior to the start of construction, the construction contractor shall be
required to prepare a Hazardous Materials Management Spill
Prevention and Control Plan that includes a project-specific
contingency plan for hazardous materials and waste operations. The
Plan shall be applicable to construction activities, and shall establish
policies and procedures according to applicable codes and
regulations, including but not limited to the California Building and Fire
Codes, and federal and California Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) regulations. Elements of the Plan shall include,
but not be limited to, the following:

 A discussion of hazardous materials management, including
delineation of hazardous material storage areas, access and



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 61

egress routes, waterways, emergency assembly areas, and
temporary hazardous waste storage areas;

 Notification and documentation of procedures; and
 Spill control and countermeasures, including employee spill

prevention/response training.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure HAZ-1a,  which will reduce impacts from hazardous materials releases to less
than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure HAZ-1a will ensure that fuel and other hazardous
materials are handled in accordance with regulatory standards to protect public health
and safety.  In addition, hazardous materials shall only be handled in specified
construction staging areas, in accordance with specified requirements, to prevent
contamination.  With the implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1a, the impact will
be less than significant.

Wildland Fire

Impact HAZ-2: The project would require use of spark-producing construction
machinery in areas with fire hazard ratings of medium and high, which
could create hazardous fire conditions. This would be considered a
potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

HAZ-2Prevention of Fire Hazards: During construction of the proposed project, the
construction contractor shall require staging areas, welding areas, or
areas slated for construction be cleared of dried vegetation or other
materials that could ignite.  Construction equipment that includes a
spark arrestor shall be maintained in good working order.  In addition,
construction crews shall have a spotter during welding activities to look
out for potentially dangerous situations, such as accidental sparks.
Other construction equipment shall be kept in good working order and
used only within cleared construction zones.  During construction of
the proposed project, contractors shall require vehicles and crews
working at the project site to have access to functional fire
extinguishers.

Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 62

Measure HAZ-2, which will serve to reduce these potential impacts to less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure HAZ-2 would ensure implementation of measures to
prevent accidental fires.  Therefore, with the implementation of this measure, the impact
will be less than significant.

Conflict with Emergency Plans

Impact HAZ-3: The project could conflict with the Stanislaus County’s Multi-
Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan. This impact would be potentially
significant.

Mitigation Measures

HAZ-1a Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Prevention Control Plan:
Prior to the start of construction, the construction contractor shall be
required to prepare a Hazardous Materials Management Spill
Prevention and Control Plan that includes a project-specific
contingency plan for hazardous materials and waste operations. The
Plan shall be applicable to construction activities, and shall establish
policies and procedures according to applicable codes and
regulations, including but not limited to the California Building and Fire
Codes, and federal and California Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) regulations. Elements of the Plan shall include,
but not be limited to, the following:

 A discussion of hazardous materials management, including
delineation of hazardous material storage areas, access and
egress routes, waterways, emergency assembly areas, and
temporary hazardous waste storage areas;

 Notification and documentation of procedures; and
 Spill control and countermeasures, including employee spill

prevention/response training.

HAZ-2Prevention of Fire Hazards: During construction of the proposed project, the
construction contractor shall require staging areas, welding areas, or
areas slated for construction be cleared of dried vegetation or other
materials that could ignite.  Construction equipment that includes a
spark arrestor shall be maintained in good working order.  In addition,
construction crews shall have a spotter during welding activities to look
out for potentially dangerous situations, such as accidental sparks.
Other construction equipment shall be kept in good working order and
used only within cleared construction zones.  During construction of
the proposed project, contractors shall require vehicles and crews



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 63

working at the project site to have access to functional fire
extinguishers.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR.  The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures HAZ-1 and HAZ-2, which will substantially reduce impacts to less than
significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measures HAZ-1 and HAZ-2 would ensure that that the project
would not cause hazardous conditions during construction.  With the implementation of
these measures, the impact will be less than significant.

3.11 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY
Construction Water Quality Impacts

Impact HYD-1: Construction would include vegetation removal, grading, and
excavation activities, which could result in increased sedimentation
and erosion and could result in impacts to water quality. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

HYD-1a Comply with the Construction General Permit: To minimize the
impacts to water quality from construction activities, the proposed
project shall implement measures contained in the Construction
General Permit including the development of a SWPPP.

HYD-1b Implement BMPs to Control Erosion and Sediment During
Construction: The SWPPP shall specify that all construction activities
shall implement multiple BMPs to provide effective erosion and
sediment control. These BMPs shall be selected to achieve maximum
sediment removal and represent the best available technology that is
economically achievable. BMPs to be implemented as part of this
mitigation measure shall include, but are not limited to, the following
measures:

 Temporary erosion control measures, such as silt fences,
staked straw bales/wattles, silt/sediment basins and traps,
check dams, geofabric, sandbag dikes,  and temporary
revegetation or other ground cover, shall be employed for
disturbed areas;

 Dirt and debris shall be swept from paved streets in the
construction zone on a regular basis, particularly before
predicted rainfall events;



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 64

 Grass or other vegetative cover will be re-established on
unpaved areas of the construction site as soon as possible after
disturbance. In paved areas, any removed paving will be
replaced as soon as possible; and

 Soil stockpiling sites will be located such that they do not
drain directly into the San Joaquin River or irrigation canals.

Multiple BMPs used in combination, properly installed and maintained,
can achieve significant sediment removal. BMPs proposed by the
project contractor shall be subject to approval by the project
proponent, and the project proponent shall require that all parties
performing construction under the proposed project incorporate into
contract specifications the requirement that the contractor(s) comply
with and implement these provisions. The contractor shall also include
provisions for monitoring during and after construction activities to
verify that these standards are met.

HYD-1c Comply with the General Order for Dewatering or Other Appropriate
NPDES Permit: To minimize the impacts to water quality from
dewatering activities, the proposed project shall implement measures
contained in the General Order for Dewatering or other appropriate
NPDES permit or Waste Discharge Requirement.

BIO-1d Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless
Construction: Prior to constructing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin
River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed
and submitted by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands
Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status
plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out
associated with horizontal directional drilling;

 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event

a frac-out; and
 Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a

qualified biologist.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measures BIO-1d, HYD-1a, HYD-1b and HYD-1c, and with the implementation of these
measures, the project’s impacts to water quality during construction would be
considered less than significant after mitigation.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 65

Rationale: Mitigation Measures BIO-1d, HYD-1a, HYD-1b and HYD-1c will insure
adherence to all applicable NPDES requirements and other water quality regulations to
minimize impacts to water quality and to ensure that no debris or other pollutants from
the construction affect water quality of streams and drainages in the project area.
Therefore, with the implementation of these measures, the impact will be less than
significant.

3.14 NOISE
Construction Noise

Impact NOI-1: During construction of the project, noise levels would temporarily
be elevated in association with operation of heavy equipment. This
would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

NOISE-1 Noise Reduction Measures: To reduce the impact of noise from
construction activities the following measures shall be implemented to
the extent feasible:

 Construction activities shall be limited to the hours of 7:00
am to 7:00 pm, Monday to Friday.

 Construction staging areas shall be as far as possible from
existing residences.

 Construction equipment noise shall be minimized during
project construction by muffling and shielding intakes and
exhaust on construction equipment per the manufacturers’
specifications and by shrouding or shielding impact tools.  All
equipment shall have sound-control devices no less effective
than those provided by the manufacturer.

 All stationary noise generating construction equipment shall
be placed as far away as possible from sensitive receptors on in
an orientation minimizing noise impacts (e.g. behind barriers or
storage piles).

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure NOISE-1, and with the implementation of these measures, the project’s
impacts during construction would be considered less than significant after mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure NOISE-1 will insure that construction noise is minimized
to the extent feasible.  Because the County Noise Ordinance exempts this type of
construction activity and because appropriate measures will be implement to reduce



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 66

noise levels, with the implementation of this measure, the impact will be less than
significant.

3.16 PUBLIC SERVICES AND UTILITIES
Construction Disruption

Impact PUB-4: During construction of the project, there is a potential for disruption
of utilities and interruption of associated services. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

PUB-4 Coordinate Relocation and Interruptions of Service with Utility
Providers during Construction: The construction contractor shall be
required to verify the nature and location of underground utilities
before the start of any construction that would require excavation.  The
contractor shall be required to notify and coordinate with public and
private utility providers at least 48 hours before the commencement of
work adjacent to any utility.  The contractor shall be required to notify
the service provider in advance of service interruptions to allow the
service provider sufficient time to notify customers.  The contractor
shall be required to coordinate timing of interruptions with the service
providers to minimize the frequency and duration of interruptions.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation
Measure PUB-4, and with the implementation of these measures, the project’s impacts
to utilities during construction would be considered less than significant after
mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure PUB-4 will insure that disruption of utilities is minimized
to the extent feasible.  Because the County Noise Ordinance exempts this type of
construction activity and because appropriate measures will be implement to reduce
noise levels, with the implementation of this measure, the impact will be less than
significant.



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 67

3.19 TRANSPORTATION
Construction Disruption

Impact TR-1: During construction of the project, there is a potential temporary
road and lane closures causing a degradation in level of service. This
would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Impact TR-2: During construction of the project, there is a potential for disruption
of alternative modes of transportation including public transit, bicycles
and pedestrian uses. This would be considered a potentially
significant impact.

Impact TR-3: During construction of the project, there is a potential for
interference with emergency access and circulation. This would be
considered a potentially significant impact.

Impact TR-4: During construction of the project, there would be additional traffic
from truck trips to deliver materials and haul spoil and from worker
travel. This would be considered a potentially significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

TR-1 Implement a Construction Management Plan to Minimize Interference with
Traffic and Emergency Response Hazards: The Partner Agencies
(DPWD, the City of Modesto, and the City of Turlock) or the
construction contractor, in consultation with the County, will prepare
and implement a Traffic Management Plan (TMP). The Partner
Agencies will be responsible for ensuring that the plan is adequately
developed and implemented. The Partner Agencies will provide the
TMP to the Stanislaus County Department of Public Works and
Caltrans. The TMP will include recommended traffic-control and traffic-
reduction measures as identified in the Transportation Management
Plan Guidelines issued by the Division of Traffic Operations Office of
System Management Operations (Caltrans 2009). The Partner
Agencies will require all traffic-control or traffic-reduction measures
described in the TMP to be implemented. In addition, to the extent
feasible, construction-related traffic and any temporary road closures
shall be scheduled during non‐peak traffic periods.

The measures included in the TMP shall be consistent with any
applicable guidelines outlined in the Standard Specifications for Public
Works Construction, the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the Work Area Traffic Control
Handbook. The plan will include the following items:



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 68

 Definition of location and timing of any temporary lane or
roadway closures;

 Identification and provision for circumstances requiring the
use of temporary traffic control measures, such as flag persons,
warning signs, lights, barricades, and cones to provide safe
work areas in the vicinity of the project site or along the haul
routes, including for narrow roadway segments, and to warn,
control, protect, and expedite vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian
traffic and access by emergency responders;

 Implementation of comprehensive traffic control measures,
including scheduling of major truck trips and deliveries to avoid
peak-hour traffic, placement of detour signs (if required), lane
closure procedures (if required), flaggers (if required),
placement of cones for drivers, and designated construction
access routes and access points;

 Notification to adjacent property owners, transit agencies
and public safety personnel regarding when major deliveries,
detours, and lane closures will occur;

 Measures to address the potential for construction-related
traffic to impede emergency response vehicles and a specific
training and information program for construction workers to
ensure awareness of emergency procedures for project‐related
accidents;

 Identification of haul routes for movement of construction
vehicles that will minimize impacts on vehicular and pedestrian
traffic and circulation and safety, and provision for monitoring
surface streets used for haul routes so that any damage and
debris attributable to the haul trucks can be identified and
corrected by the Partner Agencies in coordination with the
construction contractor;

 Consideration of other projects in the vicinity that could also
affect the same roadways as the project;

 Development of a process for responding to and tracking
complaints pertaining to construction activity, including
identification of an onsite complaint manager; and

 Documentation of road pavement conditions for all routes
that would be used by construction vehicles both before and
after project construction. Roads damaged by construction
vehicles will be repaired to the level at which they existed before
project construction.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 69

Measure TR-1, and with the implementation of these measures, the project’s impacts to
transportation during construction would be considered less than significant after
mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measure TR-1 will insure that disruption of traffic and
transportation is minimized to the extent feasible.  This measure provides traffic control
to manage lane and road closures, addresses alternate modes of travel, maintains
emergency access and manages truck traffic during construction, thus reducing the
impacts to less than significant.

Construction Access

Impact TR-5: During construction of the project, there is a potential that access to
driveways would be impaired. This would be considered a potentially
significant impact.

Mitigation Measures

TR-1 Implement a Construction Management Plan to Minimize Interference with
Traffic and Emergency Response Hazards: The Partner Agencies
(DPWD, the City of Modesto, and the City of Turlock) or the
construction contractor, in consultation with the County, will prepare
and implement a Traffic Management Plan (TMP). The Partner
Agencies will be responsible for ensuring that the plan is adequately
developed and implemented. The Partner Agencies will provide the
TMP to the Stanislaus County Department of Public Works and
Caltrans. The TMP will include recommended traffic-control and traffic-
reduction measures as identified in the Transportation Management
Plan Guidelines issued by the Division of Traffic Operations Office of
System Management Operations (Caltrans 2009). The Partner
Agencies will require all traffic-control or traffic-reduction measures
described in the TMP to be implemented. In addition, to the extent
feasible, construction-related traffic and any temporary road closures
shall be scheduled during non‐peak traffic periods.

The measures included in the TMP shall be consistent with any
applicable guidelines outlined in the Standard Specifications for Public
Works Construction, the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Manual
on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the Work Area Traffic Control
Handbook. The plan will include the following items:

 Definition of location and timing of any temporary lane or
roadway closures;

 Identification and provision for circumstances requiring the
use of temporary traffic control measures, such as flag persons,



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 70

warning signs, lights, barricades, and cones to provide safe
work areas in the vicinity of the project site or along the haul
routes, including for narrow roadway segments, and to warn,
control, protect, and expedite vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian
traffic and access by emergency responders;

 Implementation of comprehensive traffic control measures,
including scheduling of major truck trips and deliveries to avoid
peak-hour traffic, placement of detour signs (if required), lane
closure procedures (if required), flaggers (if required),
placement of cones for drivers, and designated construction
access routes and access points;

 Notification to adjacent property owners, transit agencies
and public safety personnel regarding when major deliveries,
detours, and lane closures will occur;

 Measures to address the potential for construction-related
traffic to impede emergency response vehicles and a specific
training and information program for construction workers to
ensure awareness of emergency procedures for project‐related
accidents;

 Identification of haul routes for movement of construction
vehicles that will minimize impacts on vehicular and pedestrian
traffic and circulation and safety, and provision for monitoring
surface streets used for haul routes so that any damage and
debris attributable to the haul trucks can be identified and
corrected by the Partner Agencies in coordination with the
construction contractor;

 Consideration of other projects in the vicinity that could also
affect the same roadways as the project;

 Development of a process for responding to and tracking
complaints pertaining to construction activity, including
identification of an onsite complaint manager; and

 Documentation of road pavement conditions for all routes
that would be used by construction vehicles both before and
after project construction. Roads damaged by construction
vehicles will be repaired to the level at which they existed before
project construction.

TR-2 Install Temporary Trench Plates Over Open Trenches: During construction of
the pipeline, temporary trench plates will be installed over open
trenches at the end of each work day.

Findings: Changes or alterations have been required in, or incorporated into, the
project which avoid or substantially lessen the significant environmental effect identified
in the Final EIR. The project has been revised to require implementation of Mitigation



Resolution No. 2015-177
Page 71

Measures TR-1 and TR-2, and with the implementation of these measures, the project’s
impacts to access during construction would be considered less than significant after
mitigation.

Rationale: Mitigation Measures TR-1 and TR-2 will ensure that access to driveways is
maintained, reducing the impact to less than significant.



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-1

ATTACHMENT 2
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PLAN
The City of Modesto, City of Turlock and Del Puerto Water District working together as Partner
Agencies are proposing to implement the North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program
(NVRRWP). The City of Modesto is the CEQA lead agency for completion of the Environmental
Impact Report, which was prepared in conjunction with the Bureau of Reclamation, the NEPA
lead agency, as a joint Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement
(EIR/EIS). After considering the environmental analysis provided in the Draft EIR/EIS and
public comments submitted on the Draft EIR/EIS, the City of Modesto has determined that the
project would not have a significant effect on the environment with implementation of the
mitigation measures identified in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP).  This
MMRP provides a plan for implementation of mitigation measures that pertain to the Combined
Alignment Alternative, which has been selected as the preferred alternative.

The MMRP contains all of the mitigation measures that were presented in the Draft EIR/EIS,
with some minor modifications based on comments received from regulatory and trustee
agencies during public review of the Draft EIR/EIS.  Mitigation numbers are tied to the impact
numbers in the Draft EIR/EIS, so mitigation is not numbered consecutively.  Some impacts that
were determined to be less than significant do not require mitigation, and thus some mitigation
numbers are skipped.  For example, Impact BIO-7 was determined to be less than significant, so
there is no Mitigation BIO-7.  The table is organized by Mitigation Measure and because some
measures address several different impacts, multiple impacts may be listed in the Impact
Statement, where applicable.  To ensure consistency of mitigation numbering, some of the
mitigation numbers have been revised.

While the Draft EIR/EIS was prepared by the City of Modesto and the Bureau of Reclamation as
a joint document, the Final EIR has been prepared as a separate CEQA document, which will be
considered for certification by the City of Modesto.  Reclamation will separately circulate a Final
EIS for 30 days before issuing a Record of Decision for the NVRRWP.

Mitigation measures have been included in the project to reduce or avoid potential environmental
impacts associated with project construction and operation. Section 21081.6 of the California
Public Resources Code requires a CEQA lead or responsible agency that approves or carries out
a project where an EIR has identified measures to mitigate significant environmental effects to
adopt a “reporting monitoring program for adopted or required changes to mitigate or avoid
significant environmental effects.” In accordance with Section 21081.6 of the Public Resources
Code, this MMRP has been prepared.



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-2

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
Aesthetics
AES-2: New sources of substantial
light or glare

AES-2: Nighttime Construction Lighting: Nighttime construction lighting, if required, shall be shielded and oriented
downward to minimize effects on any nearby receptors. Lighting shall be directed toward active construction areas only,
and shall have the minimum brightness necessary to ensure worker safety.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that lighting measures
are included in contract documents

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

Agriculture Resources
AG-1: Convert farmland to non-
agricultural use

AG-1: Stockpile Soil: Topsoil removed during project construction shall be stockpiled for later reuse.  Soil shall
be stored in a clear area of the construction site where it would not have the potential to affect agricultural or
biological resources. Stockpiled soil shall be covered with a tarp at all times to prevent generation of fugitive
dust.  Following pipeline insertion, soil shall be backfilled into the trench and restored to an appropriate level of
compaction.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that soils stockpiling
requirements are included in
contract specifications

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

Air Quality
AIR-1: Construction emissions of
criteria pollutants and precursors

ENE-1: Inefficient, wasteful, or
unnecessary use of energy resources

AIR-1: Reduce NOx Emissions: NOx emissions associated with construction activities shall be reduced to 10 tons per
year through on-site equipment and hauling vehicle mitigation measures to the extent feasible. All vehicles and
equipment used during construction shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with the manufacturer’s
specifications to perform at EPA certification levels and to perform at verified standards applicable to retrofit
technologies.  All equipment shall be checked by a certified mechanic and determined to be running in proper condition
prior to operation.  Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or reducing the
maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne toxics control measure CCR Title 13 Section
2485). Emissions reduction methods may be chosen from any combination of the following measures:

 Minimize the use and trips of construction equipment and trucks by consolidating trips and loads to the extent
feasible

 Minimize unnecessary idling by shutting off equipment and trucks when not in use to the extent feasible and
comply with CARB idling regulations.

 Conduct periodic unscheduled inspections to ensure equipment is maintained properly and in accordance with
manufacturer’s recommendations and excessive idling is not occurring.

 Prepare inventory of all equipment prior to construction consistent with SJVAPCD Indirect Source Review
Rule.

 Develop a construction traffic and parking management plan that minimizes traffic interference and maintains
traffic flow.

The contractor will be encouraged to implement the following measures to the extent feasible before implementation of
off-site mitigation measures and identify why the measures are infeasible if not implemented in particular due to
economic infeasibility:

 Use alternative fueled vehicles.
 Use newer tier engines such as EPA Tier 4 exhaust emissions standards for heavy-duty nonroad compression

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,

SJVAPCD

1. Confirm that air quality measures
are included in contract documents

2. Review estimated emissions and,
if needed implement VERA with
SJVAPCD

3. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-3

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
ignition engines.

 Use of newer on-highway vehicles that meet the EPA exhaust emissions standards for model year 2010 and
newer heavy-duty on-highway compression ignition engines

 Use phased material hauling trips
 Use after-market pollution control devices to reduce emissions
 Lengthen the construction schedule to reduce the annual intensity of construction activities

If all feasible on-site measures have been implemented and annual emissions are anticipated to still be above 10 tons
per year for NOx, then the project proponent shall enter into a Voluntary Emissions Reduction Agreement (VERA) with
SJVAPCD. The VERA would provide pound-for-pound mitigation of air emissions increases down to a net zero
emissions per year as required under general conformity through a process that develops, funds, and implements
emission reduction projects. SJVAPCD would serving as role of administrator of the emissions reduction projects and
verifier of the successful mitigation effort.

Biological Resources
BIO-1: Effects on special-status
plants

BIO-1a: Avoid or Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Plant Species: To the extent feasible, project-related
activities shall avoid habitats with the potential to support special-status plants, including alkali flats, alkali scrub, alkali
pools, and freshwater wetlands. To the extent feasible, the proposed project shall minimize potential impacts to special-
status plants by utilizing trenchless construction techniques within habitats with the potential to support special-status
plants.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that locations of
facilities avoid sensitive habitats to
the extent feasible through siting
and use of trenchless techniques.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design 1.________

BIO-1: Effects on special-status
plants

BIO-1b: Perform Focused Surveys for Special-Status Plant Species in Suitable Habitats: Within one year prior to
commencement of construction activities, a qualified botanist shall perform surveys for special-status plant species
within potentially suitable habitat in the vicinity of open-cut construction areas (Survey areas are shown in Attachment
A to the MMRP). Floristic surveys shall be performed according to the Protocols for Surveying and Evaluating Impacts
to Specials Status Native Plant Populations and Natural Communities (CDFG 2009 or current version). Floristic
surveys shall include the use of a reference population, as reasonably feasible, to increase the likelihood of detection,
and shall be performed during the appropriate bloom period(s) for each species. If special-status plants are detected
within a 100-foot radius or within the microwatershed of an open-cut construction area (including pits that would be
used for trenchless construction), Mitigation Measure BIO-1c shall be implemented.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm completion of surveys. 1. Pre-
construction

1.________

BIO-1: Effects on special-status
plants

BIO-1c: Monitor or Compensate for Impacts to Special-Status Plant Species: The locations of special-status plants
within the microwatershed or within 100 feet of construction areas shall be marked and the size of the population shall
be recorded. Locations of special-status plant populations shall be clearly identified in the field by staking, flagging, or
fencing. The plants shall be monitored throughout the duration of construction to determine if the project has resulted in
adverse effects (direct or indirect), as determined by a qualified botanist.

If the botanist determines that special-status plants may have been adversely effected, then the Partner Agencies shall
implement measures to compensate for the impact. Compensation measures may include transplanting perennial
species, seed collection and dispersal for annual species, and other conservation strategies that shall restore and protect
the viability of the local population. If minimization measures are implemented, monitoring of plant populations shall
be conducted annually for 5 years to assess the mitigation’s effectiveness. The performance standard for the mitigation
shall be no net reduction in the size or viability of the local population.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that plant locations are
marked.

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

3. Document implementation of
compensation plan if botanist
determines plants were affected

4. Monitor success of plantings, if
needed.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Pre-
construction

2. Construction

3. At completion
of construction

4. 5 years of
monitoring after
plant populations
are established

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

BIO-1: Effects on special-status BIO-1d: Develop and Implement a Frac-out Contingency Plan for Trenchless Construction: Prior to constructing
a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin River, a Frac-out Prevention and Contingency Plan shall be developed and submitted

City of City of
Modesto,

1. Confirm that frac-out plan is
developed and measures are

1. Design 1.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-4

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
plants

BIO-3: Effects on valley elderberry
longhorn beetle

BIO-4: Effects of project
construction on special-status fishes

BIO-15: Effects on riparian habitat
and other sensitive natural
communities

BIO-16: Effects on federally
protected wetlands

BIO-18: Conflict with local
ordinances or policies protecting
biological resources

HYD-1: Violation of Water Quality
Standards and/or Waste Discharge
Requirements (Due to Construction
Activities)

by the City of Modesto to the California State Lands Commission for review. At minimum, the plan shall prescribe the
measures to ensure protection of aquatic resources, special-status plants and wildlife, including:

 Procedures to minimize the potential for a frac-out associated with horizontal directional drilling;
 Procedures for timely detection of frac-outs;
 Procedures for timely response and remediation in the event a frac-out; and

Monitoring of drilling and frac-out response activities by a qualified biologist.

Modesto CDFW,
California

State Lands
Commission

included in contract documents

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

2. Construction

2.________

BIO-2: Effects on vernal pool fairy
branchiopods

BIO-15: Effects on riparian habitat
and other sensitive natural
communities

BIO-18: Conflict with local
ordinances or policies protecting
biological resources

BIO-2a: Avoid Impacts to Vernal Pool Branchiopods and their Habitat: To the extent feasible, the project-related
activities shall avoid impacts to habitat with the potential to support Conservancy fairy shrimp, longhorn fairy shrimp,
vernal pool fairy shrimp, and vernal pool tadpole shrimp, including alkali pools and swales. Avoidance shall be defined
as no direct or indirect effects to suitable habitat. This shall be accomplished by avoiding construction within the
microwatershed of suitable habitat for vernal pool branchiopods.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that facilities are sited to
avoid sensitive habitats to the extent
feasible.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design 1.________

BIO-2: Effects on vernal pool fairy
branchiopods

BIO-2b: Minimize and Compensate for Impacts to Vernal Pool Fairy Shrimp and Their Habitat: If direct or
indirect impacts to habitat with the potential to support vernal pool branchiopods cannot be avoided then the following
measures shall be implemented:

 Implement a storm water pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) to reduce the potential for sediments and
contaminants to enter pools or depressions where vernal pool branchiopods may occur;

 After construction, restore surface topography and drainage to pre-construction conditions; and
 Provide off-site compensation for permanent, temporary, and indirect impacts at ratios determined through

consultation with USFWS. The performance standard shall be no net loss in acreage or habitat quality for
vernal pool branchiopods, as determined through consultation with USFWS.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,
USFWS

1. Confirm that SWPPP addresses
protection of vernal pool habitats.

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

3. Document restoration to pre-
construction conditions

4. Monitor success of off-site
mitigation, if needed.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Pre-
construction

2. Construction

3. At completion
of construction

4. 5 years of
monitoring after
plant populations
are established

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

BIO-3: Effects on valley elderberry
longhorn beetle

BIO-3a: Avoid Impacts to Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle: To the extent feasible, the project shall adhere to
avoidance measures outlined in USFWS’ Conservation Guidelines for Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (USFWS
1999). This shall include the following avoidance measures:

 No less than 120 days prior to commencing construction, the locations of elderberry plants within 200 feet of
open-cut construction areas shall be identified;

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,
USFWS

1. Confirm that measures protecting
elderberry bushes are included in
plans and contract documents

2. Confirm that plant locations are
identified, flagged and fenced with

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-

1.________

2.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-5

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
 Fence and flag all areas to be avoided during construction activities including all established  elderberry shrubs

within 200 feet of open-cut construction that will not be impacted by construction activities;
 No open-cut construction within 100 feet of the dripline of elderberry plants containing stems measuring 1.0

inch or greater in diameter at ground level;
 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). The

CEAT shall communicate the need to avoid damaging the elderberry plants and the possible penalties for not
complying with these requirements. The CEAT will instruct work crews about the status of the beetle and the
need to protect its elderberry host plant;

 Erect signs every 50 feet along the edge of the avoidance area with the following information: "This area is
habitat of the valley elderberry longhorn beetle, a threatened species, and must not be disturbed. This species is
protected by the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended. Violators are subject to prosecution, fines, and
imprisonment." The signs will be maintained for the duration of construction; and

 No insecticides, herbicides, fertilizers, or other chemicals that might harm the beetle or its host plant would be
used within 100 feet of any elderberry plant.

appropriate signage in place.

3. Confirm completion of CEAT, and
retain sign-in sheet in file

4. Monitor construction activities to
verify that avoidance measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

construction

4. Construction
3.________

4.________

BIO-3: Effects on valley elderberry
longhorn beetle

BIO-3b: Minimize or Compensate for Impacts to Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle: If elderberry plants occur
within 100 feet of open-cut construction, their locations shall be reported to the USFWS. In areas where encroachment
on the 100-foot buffer has been approved by USFWS, a minimum setback of at least 20 feet from the dripline of each
elderberry plant shall be provided, as feasible. For any encroachment into the 100-foot buffer or removal of elderberry
plants, the Partner Agencies shall implement measures to compensate for impacts to VELB. Compensation measures
shall be consistent with USFWS’ Conservation Guidelines for Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (USFWS 1999).
This shall include establishment of a project-specific VELB Conservation Area or purchase of credits at a
USFWS-approved mitigation bank. If the Partner Agencies establish a project-specific Conservation Area, the
population of VELBs, the general condition of the Conservation Area, and the condition of the elderberry and
associated native plantings in the Conservation Area shall be monitored over a period of ten (10) years.
Monitoring and reporting shall be conducted in accordance with the Conservation Guidelines for VELB
(USFWS 1999). A minimum survival rate of at least 60 percent of the elderberry plants and 60 percent of the
associated native plants shall be maintained throughout the monitoring period.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

USFWS

1. Confirm that locations of
elderberry plants are reported to
USFWS.

2. Verify implementation of
compensation measures.

3. Monitor plantings, if required.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Pre-
construction

2. Pre-
construction

3. 10 years of
monitoring after
plant populations
are established

1.________

2.________

3.________

BIO-4: Effects of project
construction on special-status fishes

BIO-4a: Minimize Pile Driving-related Impacts to Special Status Fish: If impact pile driving activities occur
adjacent to the San Joaquin River between October 1 and May 31, the Project Proponents shall adhere to the following
restrictions on the number of allowable strikes for a 24 hour period:

Distance from
San Joaquin River

(Meters)

Distance from
San Joaquin River

(Feet)
Maximum Number of

Strikes per 24 hours1

75 246 130

150 492 365

225 738 672

300 984 1035

375 1230 1447

450 1476 1902

>450 >1476 no limit

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that pile driving
restrictions are included in contract
documents

2. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

BIO-6: Effects on giant garter snake BIO-6: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Giant Garter Snake: The following measures shall be implemented to avoid City of City of 1. Confirm that locations of 1. Design 1.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-6

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

or minimize impacts to GGS:

 Trenchless construction techniques shall be used to construct the pipeline crossing in potential aquatic habitat
for GGS (applicable to Alternatives 1 and 2 only);

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under
this program, workers shall be informed about GGS and habitat, the species life history, conservation goals,
identification of the snake, and procedures to follow in the event of a possible sighting;

 Within 24-hours prior to commencement of construction activities, the site shall be inspected by a qualified
biologist who is approved by the USFWS. The biologist shall provide the Service with a field report form
documenting the monitoring efforts within 24-hours of commencement of construction activities. A qualified
biologist shall be on-site during all construction activity within 200 feet of potential habitat for GGS (Survey
areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). If a snake is encountered during construction activities, the
biologist shall have the authority to stop construction activities until appropriate corrective measures have been
completed or it is determined that the snake would not be harmed;

 Erosion control materials including silt curtains, silt fencing, and erosion control wattles shall be regularly
inspected for entanglement or entrapment of the snake. No erosion control devices containing plastic netting
(including photo- or biodegradable plastic netting) shall be used;

 Stockpiling of construction materials, portable equipment, vehicles, and supplies shall be restricted to the
designated construction staging areas which shall be greater than 200 feet from GGS aquatic habitat;

 Clearing of wetland vegetation, if any, shall be confined to the minimal area necessary to construct the pipeline
or intake; and

 After completion of construction activities, any temporary fill and construction debris shall be removed.
Disturbed areas shall be restored to pre-project conditions. Restoration work shall include replanting native
emergent vegetation, where appropriate.

Modesto Modesto

USFWS

facilities avoid GGS habitat to the
extent feasible through siting and
use of trenchless techniques.

2. Confirm that erosion control
measures and limitations on staging
areas are included in the contract
documents.

3. Confirm completion of CEAT
and retain sign-in sheet in file.

4. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys

5. Verify submittal of field report to
USFWS.

6. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented during construction.

7. Verify restoration to pre-project
conditions

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

2. Design

3. Pre-
construction

4. Pre-
construction

5. Construction

6. Construction

7. Post-
construction

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________

7. ________

BIO-8: Effects on western pond
turtle

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

BIO-8: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Western Pond Turtle: The following measures shall be implemented to
avoid or minimize impacts to western pond turtle:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques shall be used where pipelines cross potential aquatic
habitat for western pond turtle;

 Construction personnel shall participate in a Contractor Environmental Awareness Training (CEAT). Under
this program, workers shall be informed about western pond turtle and their habitat, conservation goals,
identification, and procedures to follow in the event of a possible sighting; and

 Pre-construction surveys for western pond turtle shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 14 days before and
24 hours before the start of construction activities where suitable habitat exists (Survey are shown in
Attachment A to the MMRP). If western pond turtle or their nests are observed during pre-construction
surveys, the following measures shall be implemented:

o A qualified biologist shall be on site to monitor construction in suitable habitat. If a western pond
turtle is present within 50 feet of a construction area, no vegetation clearing or ground disturbing
activities shall be conducted until the turtle leaves the area on its own volition.

o If western pond turtle nests are identified in the work area during pre-construction surveys, a 100-foot
no-disturbance buffer shall be established between the nest and any areas of potential disturbance.
Buffers shall be clearly marked with temporary fencing. Construction shall not be allowed to
commence in the exclusion area until hatchlings have emerged from the nest, or the nest is deemed
inactive by a qualified biologist.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that locations of
facilities avoid aquatic habitat to the
extent feasible through siting and
use of trenchless techniques.

2. Confirm that limitations on
construction in turtle habitat areas
are included in the contract
documents.

3. Confirm completion of CEAT
and retain sign-in sheet in file.

4. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys

5. Verify buffers are established if
turtles are found during surveys.

6. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented as needed during
construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Design

3. Pre-
construction

4. 14 days and 24
hours Pre-
construction

5. Pre-
construction

6. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-7

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
BIO-9: Effects on burrowing owl

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

BIO-9: Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Burrowing Owl: Prior to initiating ground-disturbing
activities, surveys for burrowing owls shall be conducted in accordance with protocols established in the Staff Report
on Burrowing Owl Mitigation (CDFG 2012 or current version). If ground-disturbing activities are delayed or suspended
for more than 30 days after the pre-construction survey, the site shall be resurveyed. If burrowing owls are detected,
disturbance to burrows shall be avoided during the nesting season (February 1 through August 31).  Buffers shall be
established around occupied burrows in accordance with guidance provided in the Staff Report on Burrowing Owl
Mitigation, and at the discretion of a qualified wildlife biologist. Buffers around occupied burrows shall be a minimum
of 656 feet (200 meters) during the breeding season, and 160 feet (100 meters) during the non-breeding season. Buffer
distances shall be subject to the approval of CDFW.

If occupied burrows cannot be avoided, passive owl relocation techniques may be implemented outside of the nesting
season (February 1 through August 31). Owls would be excluded from burrows within 160 feet of construction by
installing one-way doors in burrow entrances. The work area shall be monitored daily for 1 week to confirm owl
departure from burrows prior to any ground-disturbing activities. Where possible burrows shall be excavated using hand
tools and refilled to prevent reoccupation. Sections of flexible plastic pipe shall be inserted into the tunnels during
excavation to maintain an escape route for any animals inside the burrow.

If occupied burrows are relocated, the Partners Agencies shall enhance or create burrows in adjacent habitat at a 1:1
ratio (burrows destroyed to burrows enhanced or created) one week prior to implementation of passive relocation
techniques. If burrowing owl habitat enhancement or creation takes place, the Partners Agencies shall develop and
implement a monitoring and management plan to assess the effectiveness of the mitigation. The plan shall be subject to
the approval of CDFW.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,
CDFW

1. Confirm that requirements for
burrowing owl protection are
included in the contract documents.

2. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys and resurveys,
if needed.

3. Verify buffers are established if
owls are found during surveys.

4. Verify completion of passive
relocation, if needed

5. Verify completion of habitat
enhancement, if needed.

6. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented as needed during
construction.

7. Monitor effectiveness of habitat
enhancement, if needed.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-
construction

4. Pre-
construction

5. Pre-
construction

6. Construction

7. Post-
construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________

7. ________

BIO-10: Effects on tricolored
blackbird

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

BIO-10: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies: The following measures shall be
implemented to avoid or minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird:

 To the extent feasible, trenchless construction techniques shall be used in areas that support emergent
vegetation;

 During the breeding season (February 1 through August 31), pre-construction surveys for tricolored blackbird
shall be conducted in suitable nesting habitat by a qualified biologist no more than 15 days prior to scheduled
work. Suitable nesting habitat includes any of the following: (a) dense vegetation near open water; (b)
emergent marsh vegetation, especially cattails and bulrush; (c) thickets of willow, blackberry, wild rose, or
thistles; or (d) silage and other grain fields such as sorghum; and

 If tricolored blackbird breeding is detected, a 500 foot no-disturbance buffer shall be established around the
breeding site. The buffer shall be maintained until a qualified biologist has determined that young have fledged
and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for survival.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm that locations of
facilities avoid emergent vegetation
to the extent feasible through siting
and use of trenchless techniques.

2. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys.

3. Verify buffers are established if
tricolored blackbirds are found
during surveys.

4. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented as needed during
construction.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Within 15 days
Pre-construction

3. Pre-
construction

4. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-8

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
BIO-12: Effects on raptors including
special-status species

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

BIO-12: Avoid, Minimize, or Compensate for Impacts to Raptors including Special-status species:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between February 1 and September 15, a nesting raptor
survey, with a focus on Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed kite, shall be conducted in accordance with
Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson’s Hawk Nesting Survey's in California's Central Valley
(Swainson’s Hawk Technical Advisory Committee 2000, or current CDFW guidance). Surveys shall cover a
minimum of a 0.5-mile radius around potentially suitable nesting habitat for Swainson’s hawk and white-tailed
kite (Survey areas are shown in Attachment A to the MMRP). Agricultural lands within 1,000 feet of open-cut
construction areas shall be surveyed for northern harrier nests.

 If nesting raptors are detected, a no-disturbance buffer shall be established around the nest. Buffers shall be
established by a qualified biologist, with consultation with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, as
appropriate. No construction activities shall be initiated within the buffer until fledglings are fully mobile and
no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for survival.  Construction must either be started before nests
are established, or if nesting birds are already present, construction within the buffer zone would have to be
delayed until nesting is done for the season.

 If an active Swainson’s hawk or white-tailed kite nest is located within a 0.5-mile radius of an active work
area, a biologist shall be on site daily to monitor the nest. The biologist shall monitor for behavioral changes
that would suggest the birds are stressed by construction activity or the nest may be abandoned. Such
behaviors may include excessive vocalization, a startled response coincident with a loud noise or changes in
the viewshed, or prolonged absence from the nest by adults. If the biologists determines that nest success may
be adversely impacted by construction, then construction shall be discontinued within 0.5 mile of the nest.

 Trees that would need to be removed for construction would be surveyed to determine if they are suitable for
raptor nesting.

 If potential raptor nesting trees are to be removed during construction activities, removal shall take place
outside of Swainson’s hawk nesting season. Suitable nest trees for raptors shall be replaced at a ratio of 3:1
with appropriate species [e.g., valley oak (Quercus lobata), coast live oak (Q. agrifolia)., Fremont cottonwood
(Populus fremontii)]. The trees shall be planted within 5 miles of the removal location, in areas appropriate for
raptor nesting, and on land owned or managed by one of the Partner Agencies. If replacement planting is
implemented, monitoring shall be conducted annually for 5 years to assess the mitigation’s effectiveness. The
performance standard for the mitigation shall be 65% survival of all replacement plantings.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

CDFW

1. Confirm that requirements for
raptor protection are included in the
contract documents.

2. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys of habitat and
trees to be removed.

3. Verify buffers are established if
raptors are found during surveys.

4. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented as needed during
construction.

5. Confirm replacement of nest trees,
if needed.

6. Monitor plantings, if required.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-
construction

4. Construction

5. Pre-
construction

6. 5 years of
monitoring after
trees are planted

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-9

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
BIO-13: Effects on special-status
passerine species and birds
protected under the MBTA

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

BIO-13: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-status passerine species and other Birds Protected under the
MBTA:

 If ground and vegetation disturbing activities occur between February 1 and September 15, a survey for nesting
birds shall be conducted within a 500-ft radius of the construction area. If nests are detected, buffers around
nests shall be established. No-disturbance buffers around special-status passerine nests shall be 500 feet and
250 feet for non-listed birds protected under the MBTA and Fish and Game Code sections 3503 and 3513,
unless a qualified CDFW biologist determines that smaller buffers shall be sufficient to minimize impacts to
nesting birds. Factors to be considered for determining buffer size shall include: the presence of natural buffers
provided by vegetation or topography; nest height; locations of foraging territory; and baseline levels of noise
and human activity. Buffers shall be maintained until a qualified biologist has determined that young have
fledged and are no longer reliant upon the nest or parental care for survival.

 Prior to commencing a crossing(s) of the San Joaquin River the Project Partners shall conduct surveys for LBV
in accordance with USFWS’ Least Bell’s Vireo Survey Guidelines (USFWS 2011a). If LBV are detected
during the surveys, the Project Partners shall consult with the USFWS to determine appropriate avoidance
measures. The performance standard for avoidance shall be no potential impacts to an established LBV nest.
This shall be accomplished by establishing a no-disturbance buffer around the active nest. The no-disturbance
buffer shall be a minimum of 500 feet, but may be larger depending on site specific conditions and
consultation with USFWS.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

CDFW

USFWS

1. Confirm that requirements for
nesting bird protection are included
in the contract documents.

2. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys of habitat and
trees to be removed.

3. Verify buffers are established if
nesting birds are found during
surveys.

4. Monitor construction activities to
verify that measures are
implemented as needed during
construction.

5. Verify completion of LBV surveys.

6. Verify consultation with USFWS, if
LBV are found during surveys

7. Verify avoidance measures
approved by USFWS are
implemented.

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-
construction

4. Construction

5. Pre-
construction

6. Pre-
construction

7. Pre-
construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________

7. ________

BIO-14: Effects on special-status
mammals

BIO-14a: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to San Joaquin kit fox:

 Project-related activities will avoid affecting the alkali scrub/flat habitat in the action area. Avoidance is
defined as no direct or indirect effects to habitat.

 A qualified biologist will conduct preconstruction surveys no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days
before the commencement of activities to identify potential dens more than 5 inches in diameter within 200
feet of ground disturbing activities.  The Project Partners will implement USFWS’ (2011b) Standardized
Recommendations for Protection of San Joaquin Kit Fox Prior to or During Ground Disturbance. The Project
Partners will notify USFWS in writing of the results of the preconstruction survey within 30 days after these
activities are completed.

 If potential dens are located within the proposed work area and cannot be avoided during construction
activities, a USFWS-approved biologist will determine if the dens are occupied. If occupied dens are present
within the proposed work, their disturbance will be avoided. Exclusion zones will be implemented following
the most current USFWS procedures (currently USFWS 2011b).  The Project Partners will notify USFWS
immediately if a natal or pupping den is found in the survey area, and will present the results of pre-activity
den searches within 5 days after these activities are completed and before the start of construction activities in
the area.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

USFWS

1. Confirm that requirements for
habitat avoidance and kit fox
protection are included in the
contract documents.

2. Verify completion of pre-
construction surveys of kit fox
habitat.

3. Verify notification of USFWS.

4. Verify completion of occupancy
surveys

5. Verify establishment of exclusions
zones if kit fox dens are found.

6. Verify consultation with USFWS, if
natal or pupping den is found

Document compliance and retain in
the project file.

1. Design

2. 14 to 30 days
Pre-construction

3. Within 30 days
of completion of
surveys

4. Pre-
construction

5. Pre-
construction

6. Within 5 days
of completion of
surveys

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________

5. ________

6. ________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-10

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
BIO-15: Effects on riparian habitat
and other sensitive natural
communities

BIO-16: Effects on federally
protected wetlands

BIO-18: Conflict with local
ordinances or policies protecting
biological resources

BIO-16a: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Federally Protected Wetlands: To the extent feasible, project-related
activities shall avoid federally protected wetlands. To the extent feasible, the proposed project shall minimize
potential impacts to federally protected wetlands by utilizing trenchless construction techniques. A SWPPP shall
be implemented to reduce the potential for sediments and contaminants to enter wetlands and waters. After
construction, surface topography and drainage shall be restored to pre-construction conditions. Where
appropriate, revegetation shall be implemented with site-adapted native species.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,
USACE

1. Confirm that facilities are sited to
avoid wetlands

2. Confirm that SWPPP addresses
protection of wetlands and waters.

3. Confirm restoration of drainages
to pre-construction conditions

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

BIO-15: Effects on riparian habitat
and other sensitive natural
communities

BIO-16: Effects on federally
protected wetlands

BIO-16b: Obtain Regulatory Permits for Work Activities Taking Place in Wetlands and Waters of the United
States and the State: Work within areas defined as waters of the U.S. that includes placement of fill will require a
CWA Section 404 permit and Section 401 Water Quality Certification. All work proposed in jurisdictional waters of the
U.S. shall be authorized under these permits, and the work shall comply with the general and regional conditions of the
permits. In areas where disturbance to jurisdictional waters or wetlands occurs, the Partner Agencies shall implement
mitigation consistent with the terms of a CWA Nationwide Permit and/or the Final Rule on Compensatory Mitigation
for Losses of Aquatic Resources (73 C.F.R. 19594). Compensatory mitigation may include creation, re-establishment,
or enhancement of wetlands in the Project Area or at an off-site location. Compensatory mitigation may also include
purchase of credits at an approved mitigation bank or contribution to an approved in-lieu fee program.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

USACE

1. Confirm permit requirements are
included in the contract documents

2. Confirm permit has been
obtained.

3. Confirm mitigation required by
permit has been implemented.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-
construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

BIO-CUM-2:  Effects on fish
species and their habitats

BIOCUM-1: Assistance with Salmonid Recovery Plan Actions: The NVRRWP Project Partners would work with
Reclamation and with resource agencies, including NMFS, USFWS, and CDFW to assist in implementation the
following recovery actions from the Recovery Plan for Central Valley Chinook Salmon and Steelhead.

 Implement projects that improve wastewater treatment in the San Joaquin River watershed.  The NVRRWP as
designed would reduce the input of nutrients and salinity to the San Joaquin River, and as such the proposed
project already addresses this recovery action.

 Develop and implement a spawning gravel augmentation plan in the San Joaquin River.  The NVRRWP
Project Partners would make a cash contribution to an existing restoration program or organization working to
augment spawning gravels. The funding could assist in programs being implemented as part of Reclamation’s
San Joaquin River Restoration Program, the USFWS Anadromous Fish Restoration Program, or other relevant
restoration program.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

USFWS

NMFS

CDFW

1. Confirm funding has been
provided to recovery program.

1. Pre-
construction

1.________

Cultural Resources
CUL-1: Substantial adverse change
in the significance of a unique
archaeological resource or disturb
any human remains, including those
interred outside of formal
cemeteries.

CUL-2: Cause a substantial adverse
change in the significance of a
historical resource

CUL-1a: Discovery of previously unknown archaeological resources during construction: The following measures
shall be implemented in the event of unexpected discovery of archaeological resources:

 The project proponent shall note on any construction plans that require ground disturbing excavation that there
is a potential for exposing buried cultural resources.

 The Partner Agencies shall retain a Professional Archaeologist to provide a pre-construction briefing to
supervisory personnel of any excavation contractor to alert them to the possibility of exposing significant
prehistoric archaeological resources within the study area.  The briefing shall discuss any archaeological
objects that could be exposed, the need to stop excavation at the discovery, and the procedures to follow
regarding discovery protection and notification of the project proponent and archaeological team.

 The project proponent shall retain a Professional Archaeologist on an “on-call” basis during ground disturbing
construction for the project to review, identify and evaluate cultural resources that may be inadvertently
exposed during construction.  The archaeologist shall review and evaluate any discoveries to determine if they

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

Reclamation

1. Confirm that the contract
documents include measures
requiring appropriate handling of
inadvertent discoveries

2. Confirm that construction
personnel have attended training.
Retain sign-in sheet in project file

3. Confirm that on-call archaeologist
has been retained.

4. If cultural resources are
discovered, confirm that
construction is halted and

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Pre-
construction

4. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

4.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-11

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
are historical resource(s) and/or unique archaeological resources under CEQA.

 If cultural resources are encountered during the project, construction personnel shall avoid altering these
materials and their context until a Professional Archaeologist has evaluated the situation. Project personnel
shall not collect or retain cultural resources. Prehistoric resources include, but are not limited to, chert or
obsidian flakes, projectile points, mortars, and pestles; and dark, friable soil containing shell and bone, dietary
debris, heat-affected rock, or human burials. Historical resources include stone or adobe foundations or walls,
structures and remains with square nails, and refuse deposits, often in old wells and privies.

 If the Professional Archaeologist determines that any cultural resources exposed during construction constitute
a historical resource and/or unique archaeological resource, he/she shall notify the Partner Agencies and other
appropriate parties of the evaluation and recommended measures to mitigate effects to a less-than significant
impact.  Mitigation measures may include avoidance, preservation in-place, recordation, additional
archaeological testing and data recovery, among other options.  Treatment of any significant cultural resources
shall be undertaken with the approval of the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation and other lead agencies.

 Any identified cultural resources shall be recorded on forms DPR 422 (archaeological sites) and/or DPR 523
(historic properties) or similar forms by a Professional Archaeologist.

appropriate measures are taken.

CUL-1: Substantial adverse change
in the significance of a unique
archaeological resource or disturb
any human remains, including those
interred outside of formal
cemeteries.

CUL-1b: Discovery of human burials during construction: The treatment of human remains and of associated or
unassociated funerary objects discovered during any soil-disturbing activity within the project shall comply with
applicable State laws.  This shall include immediate notification of the Stanislaus County Coroner (Stanislaus County
Sherriff's Office).

In the event of the coroner's determination that the human remains are Native American, notification of the Native
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) is required. The NAHC shall be notified by phone within 24 hours of the
discovery and shall be afforded the opportunity to appoint a Most Likely Descendant (MLD) (PRC Section 5097.98).
The archaeological consultant, project sponsor, and MLD shall make all reasonable efforts to develop an agreement for
the treatment, with appropriate dignity, of human remains and associated or unassociated funerary objects (CEQA
Guidelines Section 15064.5(d)).  The agreement should take into consideration the appropriate excavation, removal,
recordation, analysis, custodianship, curation, and final disposition of the human remains and associated or unassociated
funerary objects.  California Public Resources Code allows 48 hours to reach agreement on these matters.  If the MLD
and the other parties do not agree on the reburial method, the project will follow PRC Section 5097.98(b) which states
that "the landowner or his or her authorized representative shall reinter the human remains and items associated with
Native American burials with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface
disturbance."

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

County
Coroner

NAHC

1. Confirm appropriate notifications
have occurred if human burials are
encountered.

2. Confirm human remains have
been accorded appropriate treatment

1. Construction

2. Construction.

1.________

2.________

CUL-3: Directly or indirectly
destroy a unique paleontological
resource or site or unique geologic
feature

CUL-3: Discovery of paleontological resources during construction: If paleontological resources are discovered
during earthmoving activities, the construction crew would immediately cease work near the find.  In accordance with
Society of Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines (Society of Vertebrate Paleontology 2010), a qualified paleontologist
would assess the nature and importance of the find and recommend appropriate salvage, treatment, and future
monitoring and mitigation.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. If resources are found confirm
work is stopped and appropriate
measures are taken.

1. Construction

.

1.________

Geology, Soils, and Seismicity



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-12

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
GEO-1: Facility damage and
exposure of people to hazards from
strong seismic groundshaking

GEO-1: Perform Design-Level Geotechnical Evaluations for Seismic Hazards: During the design phase for the
proposed project, perform site-specific, design-level geotechnical evaluations to identify potential secondary ground
failure hazards (i.e., seismically-induced settlement) associated with the expected level of seismic ground shaking.  A
geotechnical memorandum shall be prepared to detail the findings of the evaluations.

The geotechnical analysis will provide recommendations to mitigate those hazards in the final design and, if necessary,
during construction.  The design-level geotechnical evaluations, based on the site conditions, location, and professional
opinion of the geotechnical engineer, may include subsurface drilling, soil testing, and analysis of site seismic response
to determine appropriate feasible measures to be incorporated into the project design.  The performance standard to be
used in the geotechnical evaluations will be minimization of the hazards associated with liquefaction and seismic
groundshaking.  The geotechnical engineer will review the seismic design criteria of facilities to ensure that facilities
are designed to withstand the highest expected peak acceleration, set forth by the California Building Code for each site,
and ensure that secondary ground failures, such as liquefaction, are minimized.  Recommendations resulting from
findings of the geotechnical study will be incorporated into the design and construction of proposed facilities.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm geotechnical evaluations
have been completed

2. Confirm that contract documents
include recommendations of
geotechnical study.

1. Design

2. Design.

1.________

2.________

GEO-2: Facility damage and
exposure of people to hazards from
liquefaction and lateral spreading

GEO-2: Perform Design-Level Geotechnical Evaluations for Soil Expansion: During the design phase for all
components of the project, a design-level geotechnical evaluation to determine the presence and characteristics of
potentially compressible and expansive soils, the engineering properties of the foundation material, and the depth and
thickness of soil layers will be completed.  The results of the investigations will include measures that would reduce soil
expansion to a less-than-significant level.  Feasible mitigation measures could include removal and replacement of soil,
deep foundations, or deep mixing of compressible or expansive soils with stabilizing agents.  All mitigation measures
included in the geotechnical evaluation will be incorporated into the project design specifications.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm geotechnical evaluations
have been completed

2. Confirm that contract documents
include recommendations of
geotechnical study.

1. Design

2. Design.

1.________

2.________

Hazards and Hazardous
Materials
HAZ-1: Create a Hazard through
Reasonably Foreseeable Upset and
Accident Conditions Involving
Release of Hazardous Materials into
the Environment

HAZ-3: Conflict with Any Adopted
Emergency Response Plan or
Emergency Evacuation Plan

HAZ-1a: Hazardous Materials Management and Spill Prevention Control Plan: Prior to the start of construction,
the construction contractor shall be required to prepare a Hazardous Materials Management Spill Prevention and
Control Plan that includes a project-specific contingency plan for hazardous materials and waste operations. The Plan
shall be applicable to construction activities, and shall establish policies and procedures according to applicable codes
and regulations, including but not limited to the California Building and Fire Codes, and federal and California
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulations. Elements of the Plan shall include, but not be
limited to, the following:

 A discussion of hazardous materials management, including delineation of hazardous material storage areas,
access and egress routes, waterways, emergency assembly areas, and temporary hazardous waste storage areas;

 Notification and documentation of procedures; and
 Spill control and countermeasures, including employee spill prevention/response training.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm requirement for
Hazardous Materials Management
Spill Prevention and Control Plan is
included in the contract documents

2. Confirm contractor has prepared
Plan

3. Confirm that plan is implemented

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

HAZ-2: Expose People or Structures
to a Significant Risk of Loss, Injury
or Death Involving Wildland Fires

HAZ-3: Conflict with Any Adopted
Emergency Response Plan or
Emergency Evacuation Plan

HAZ-2: Prevention of Fire Hazards: During construction of the proposed project, the construction contractor shall
require staging areas, welding areas, or areas slated for construction be cleared of dried vegetation or other materials
that could ignite.  Construction equipment that includes a spark arrestor shall be maintained in good working order. In
addition, construction crews shall have a spotter during welding activities to look out for potentially dangerous
situations, such as accidental sparks. Other construction equipment shall be kept in good working order and
used only within cleared construction zones.  During construction of the proposed project, contractors shall
require vehicles and crews working at the project site to have access to functional fire extinguishers.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm requirements for fire
prevention are included in the
contract documents

2. Confirm that measures are
implemented

1. Design

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

Hydrology and Water Quality



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-13

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
HYD-1: Violation of Water Quality
Standards and/or Waste Discharge
Requirements (Due to Construction
Activities)

HYD-1a: Comply with the Construction General Permit: To minimize the impacts to water quality from
construction activities, the proposed project shall implement measures contained in the Construction General Permit
including the development of a SWPPP.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm requirement for SWPPP
is included in the contract
documents

2. Confirm preparation of SWPPP

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

1.________

2.________

HYD-1: Violation of Water Quality
Standards and/or Waste Discharge
Requirements (Due to Construction
Activities)

HYD-1b: Implement BMPs to Control Erosion and Sediment During Construction: The SWPPP shall specify that
all construction activities shall implement multiple BMPs to provide effective erosion and sediment control. These
BMPs shall be selected to achieve maximum sediment removal and represent the best available technology that is
economically achievable. BMPs to be implemented as part of this mitigation measure shall include, but are not limited
to, the following measures:

 Temporary erosion control measures, such as silt fences, staked straw bales/wattles, silt/sediment basins and
traps, check dams, geofabric, sandbag dikes,  and temporary revegetation or other ground cover, shall be
employed for disturbed areas;

 Dirt and debris shall be swept from paved streets in the construction zone on a regular basis, particularly
before predicted rainfall events;

 Grass or other vegetative cover will be re-established on unpaved areas of the construction site as soon as
possible after disturbance. In paved areas, any removed paving will be replaced as soon as possible; and

 Soil stockpiling sites will be located such that they do not drain directly into the San Joaquin River or
irrigation canals.

Multiple BMPs used in combination, properly installed and maintained, can achieve significant sediment removal.
BMPs proposed by the project contractor shall be subject to approval by the project proponent, and the project
proponent shall require that all parties performing construction under the proposed project incorporate into contract
specifications the requirement that the contractor(s) comply with and implement these provisions. The contractor shall
also include provisions for monitoring during and after construction activities to verify that these standards are met.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Review and approve SWPPP

2. Confirm implementation of BMPs

1. Pre-
construction

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

HYD-1: Violation of Water Quality
Standards and/or Waste Discharge
Requirements (Due to Construction
Activities)

HYD-1c: Comply with the General Order for Dewatering or Other Appropriate NPDES Permit: To minimize the
impacts to water quality from dewatering activities, the proposed project shall implement measures contained in the
General Order for Dewatering or other appropriate NPDES permit or Waste Discharge Requirement.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm requirement for permit is
included in the contract documents

2. Confirm permit obtained

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

1.________

2.________

Noise
NOI-1: Temporary Construction-
Related Noise Increases

NOISE-1: Noise Reduction Measures: To reduce the impact of noise from construction activities the following
measures shall be implemented to the extent feasible:

 Construction activities shall be limited to the hours of 7:00 am to 7:00 pm, Monday to Friday.
 Construction staging areas shall be as far as possible from existing residences.
 Construction equipment noise shall be minimized during project construction by muffling and shielding intakes

and exhaust on construction equipment per the manufacturers’ specifications and by shrouding or shielding
impact tools.  All equipment shall have sound-control devices no less effective than those provided by the
manufacturer.

 All stationary noise generating construction equipment shall be placed as far away as possible from sensitive
receptors on in an orientation minimizing noise impacts (e.g. behind barriers or storage piles).

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm noise reduction measures
are included in the contract
documents

2. Confirm measures are
implemented during construction

1. Design

2. Construction

1.________

2.________

Public Services and Utilities



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-14

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
PUB-4: Temporary disruption of
utilities or services due to
construction-related activities

PUB-4: Coordinate Relocation and Interruptions of Service with Utility Providers during Construction: The
construction contractor shall be required to verify the nature and location of underground utilities before the start of any
construction that would require excavation.  The contractor shall be required to notify and coordinate with public and
private utility providers at least 48 hours before the commencement of work adjacent to any utility.  The contractor shall
be required to notify the service provider in advance of service interruptions to allow the service provider sufficient
time to notify customers.  The contractor shall be required to coordinate timing of interruptions with the service
providers to minimize the frequency and duration of interruptions.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm noise utility measures
are included in the contract
documents

2. Confirm utilities are located

3. Confirm contractor coordination
with utility providers.

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________

Transportation
TR-1: Temporary Lane and Road
Closures and Potential for LOS
Degradation

TR-2: Potential Impacts on Public
Transit, Bicycle, and Pedestrian
Uses of Affected Roadways

TR-3: Interference with Emergency
Access and Circulation

TR-4: Impacts to Traffic and
Circulation from Trip Generation

TR-5: Damage to Driveways from
Open Trench Excavation

TR-1: Implement a Construction Management Plan to Minimize Interference with Traffic and Emergency
Response Hazards: The Partner Agencies (DPWD, the City of Modesto, and the City of Turlock) or the construction
contractor, in consultation with the County, will prepare and implement a Traffic Management Plan (TMP). The Partner
Agencies will be responsible for ensuring that the plan is adequately developed and implemented. The Partner Agencies
will provide the TMP to the Stanislaus County Department of Public Works and Caltrans. The TMP will include
recommended traffic-control and traffic-reduction measures as identified in the Transportation Management Plan
Guidelines issued by the Division of Traffic Operations Office of System Management Operations (Caltrans 2009). The
Partner Agencies will require all traffic-control or traffic-reduction measures described in the TMP to be implemented.
In addition, to the extent feasible, construction-related traffic and any temporary road closures shall be scheduled during
non‐peak traffic periods.

The measures included in the TMP shall be consistent with any applicable guidelines outlined in the Standard
Specifications for Public Works Construction, the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices, and the Work Area Traffic Control Handbook. The plan will include the following items:

 Definition of location and timing of any temporary lane or roadway closures;
 Identification and provision for circumstances requiring the use of temporary traffic control measures, such as

flag persons, warning signs, lights, barricades, and cones to provide safe work areas in the vicinity of the
project site or along the haul routes, including for narrow roadway segments, and to warn, control, protect, and
expedite vehicular, bicycle, and pedestrian traffic and access by emergency responders;

 Implementation of comprehensive traffic control measures, including scheduling of major truck trips and
deliveries to avoid peak-hour traffic, placement of detour signs (if required), lane closure procedures (if
required), flaggers (if required), placement of cones for drivers, and designated construction access routes and
access points;

 Notification to adjacent property owners, transit agencies and public safety personnel regarding when major
deliveries, detours, and lane closures will occur;

 Measures to address the potential for construction-related traffic to impede emergency response vehicles and a
specific training and information program for construction workers to ensure awareness of emergency
procedures for project‐related accidents;

 Identification of haul routes for movement of construction vehicles that will minimize impacts on vehicular
and pedestrian traffic and circulation and safety, and provision for monitoring surface streets used for haul
routes so that any damage and debris attributable to the haul trucks can be identified and corrected by the
Partner Agencies in coordination with the construction contractor;

 Consideration of other projects in the vicinity that could also affect the same roadways as the project;
 Development of a process for responding to and tracking complaints pertaining to construction activity,

including identification of an onsite complaint manager; and
 Documentation of road pavement conditions for all routes that would be used by construction vehicles both

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto,
Stanislaus

County
Department

of Public
Works,
Caltrans

1. Confirm requirement for TMP is
included in the contract documents

2. Review and approve TMP, and
confirm submittal to Stanislaus
County Department of Public Works
and Caltrans

3. Confirm measures are
implemented during construction

1. Design

2. Pre-
construction

3. Construction

1.________

2.________

3.________



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan

June 2015 J-15

Impact Statement Mitigation Measure (Exact Text)

Party
Responsible

for
Implementation
and Reporting

Review
and

Approval
by:

Monitoring and Reporting
Actions

Implementation
Schedule
-Design

-Pre-
construction
-Construction

-Operation

Verification:
Status/ Date
Completed/

Initials
before and after project construction. Roads damaged by construction vehicles will be repaired to the level at
which they existed before project construction.

TR-5: Damage to Driveways from
Open Trench Excavation

BIO-17: Effects on movement of
fish and wildlife and use of breeding
sites

TR-2: Install Temporary Trench Plates Over Open Trenches: During construction of the pipeline, temporary
trench plates will be installed over open trenches at the end of each work day.

City of
Modesto

City of
Modesto

1. Confirm requirement for
temporary trench plating is included
in the contract documents

2. Confirm plating is installed at the
end of each work day.

1. Design

2.. Construction

1.________

2.________

Agency Abbreviations: CDFW=California Department of Fish and Wildlife, NAHC=Native American Heritage Commission, NMFS=National Marine Fisheries Services, SJCVAPCD=San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, USFWS=U.S.
Fish and Wildlife Services, USACE=U.S. Army Corps of Engineers



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Attachment A
North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-1

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES SURVEY AREAS
Table 3.4-3 from the Draft EIR/EIS lists areas where surveys for special-status species will be performed, and Figure 3.4-1 from the Draft EIR/EIS
shows survey areas by station number.  Survey areas are shown only for the Combined Alignment Alternative (Alternative 1), which has been
selected as the Preferred Alternative in the Final EIR.  The other two alternatives, the Separate Alignment Alternative (Alternative 2) and the
Patterson Irrigation District Conveyance Alternative (Alternative 3) are not included in the table or figure showing survey areas.  Sheets 12 through
17 from Draft EIR/EIS Figure 3.4-1, which showed the portion of the pipeline from the Turlock discharge location to the Delta-Mendota Canal, are
thus not included in the survey areas.

Table 3.4-3: Survey Area for Special-Status Species and Sensitive Biological Resources

Mitigation
Measure Species

Location
(Station Number) Timing of Surveys

BIO-1b: Special-
Status Plant
Species

Alkali milkvetch (Astragalus tener var. tener)

heartscale (Atriplex cordulata)

brittlescale (Atriplex depressa)

lesser saltscale (Atriplex minuscula)

vernal pool smallscale (Atriplex persistens)

Hispid bird’s beak
(Chloropyron molle ssp. hispidum)

slough thistle (Cirsium crassicaule)

San Joaquin spearscale
(Extriplex joaquiniana)

prostrate vernal pool navarretia (Navarretia
prostrata)

553+00 to 563+00 Within 1 year prior to
construction and
during appropriate
bloom periods

BIO-1b: Special-
Status Plant
Species

slough thistle (Cirsium crassicaule)

Sanford's arrowhead (Sagittaria sanfordii)

335+00 to 345+00

373+00 to 376+00

436+00 to 438+00

563+00 to 564+00

Harding Drain

BIO-3b:
Minimize or
Compensate for
Impacts to Valley
Elderberry
Longhorn Beetle

Elderberry plants/Valley elderberry longhorn
beetle (Desmocerus californicus dimorphus)

Within 200 feet of all open-
cut construction areas

No greater than two
years and no less than
120 days prior to
construction.

Bio-6: Avoid and
Minimize Impacts
to Giant Garter
Snake

Giant garter snake (Thamnophis gigas) Within 200 feet of:

335+00 to 345+00

373+00 to 376+00

436+00 to 438+00

563+00 to 564+00

Harding Drain

24 hours prior to
construction and
monitoring during
construction within
200 feet of potential
aquatic habitat.

Bio-8: Avoid and
Minimize Impacts
to Western Pond
Turtle

Western pond turtle (Actinemys marmorata) 335+00 to 345+00

373+00 to 376+00

436+00 to 438+00

563+00 to 564+00

Harding Drain

14 days and 24 hours
(survey twice)

Impact Bio-9:
Avoid, Minimize,
or Compensate
for Impacts to
Burrowing Owl

Burrowing owl (Athene cunicularia) Open-cut construction areas At least 24 hours but
no more than 30 days

Impact Bio-10:
Avoid and
Minimize Impacts
to Tricolored
Blackbird Nesting
Colonies

Tricolored blackbird (Agelaius tricolor) Agricultural fields planted
with silage or grain

320+00 to 345+00

373+00 to 376+00

436+00 to 438+00

563+00 to 564+00

Harding Drain

Within 15 days of
construction for
activities occurring
between Feb.1 – Aug.
31

BIO-12: Avoid,
Minimize, or
Compensate for
Impacts to
Raptors including
Special-status
species

Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni)

White-tailed kite (Elanus leucurus)

0.5-mile radius from:

San Joaquin River

Turlock-Modesto Link
Segment

See: Recommended
Timing and
Methodology for
Swainson’s Hawk
Nesting Survey's in
California's Central
Valley

Northern harrier (Circus cyaneus) 1,000-foot radius from all
construction areas

Non-listed raptors 0.5-mile radius from all
construction areas

BIO-13: Avoid
and Minimize
Impacts to

Special-status passerines including least Bell’s
vireo (Vireo bellii pusillus)

Protocol surveys for least
Bell’s vireo in San Joaquin
River crossing (s), and

For least Bell’s vireo.
see: Least Bell’s Vireo
Survey Guidelines



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Attachment A
North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-2

Mitigation
Measure Species

Location
(Station Number) Timing of Surveys

Special-status
passerine species
and other Birds
Protected under
the MBTA

Non-listed, MBTA protected passerines 500-foot radius from all
construction areas.

(USFWS 2011a).

At least 24 hours
before construction for
activities occurring
between

Feb.1 – Sept. 15 for
other passerines

BIO-14: Avoid
and Minimize
Impacts to San
Joaquin kit fox

San Joaquin kit fox (Vulpes macrotis mutica) Within 200 feet of all
construction areas

No less than 14 days
and no more than 30
days prior to
construction



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-3

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (1 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-4

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (2 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-5

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (3 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-6

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (4 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-7

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (5 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-8

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (6 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-9

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (7 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-10

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (8 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-11

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (9 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-12

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (10 of 11)



North Valley Regional Recycled Water Program Biological Resources Survey Areas

June 2015 MMRP A-13

Figure 3.4-1: Biological Study Area (11 of 11)
















	Agenda
	5A
	5B
	5C
	5D
	5E
	5F
	5G
	5H
	5I
	5J
	5K
	5L
	5M
	5N
	5O
	5P
	5Q
	6A
	7A
	7B
	7C
	8A
	8B
	8C
	8D
	8E

